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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hop
Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” and with
its subsidiaries, the "“Group”, “us”, "“our” or “we"”), I am
delighted to present to our shareholders our 2012 annual

results.

The corrugated packaging industry still faced a slate of
challenges and difficulties in 2012. In the first half, the global
economy was still weighted down by the effects of the Euro-
zone crisis, with weak demand in Europe and the US holding
back the economic recovery. Delays in infrastructure spending
and credit tightening measures against the property sector in
China have also depressed consumption in China, and resulted
in lower growth rates. Companies faced tremendous pressure
on over capacity and reduced selling prices whilst the increase
in operating costs such as oil prices and labour prices stayed
relentless.

Light was however seen at the end of the tunnel for the global
economy in the second half. Even as the US recovery remained
anemic, the economy performed better than expected and
demand saw marked improvements. The Chinese government
was gradually adjusting its stance to stabilise growth, resuming
construction of large scale infrastructure projects and loosening
credit, boosting demand. As a result, orders returned in the
fourth quarter and selling prices also saw a small recovery.

Facing a complicated and difficult business environment, the
Group strengthened its cost control measures and streamlined
production processes to reduce raw materials and energy use.
The management shifted its marketing strategy in favour of
products with a shorter turnaround time, reducing inventories
and balancing sales and stock. The Group continues to focus on
quality customers and bad debts remain negligible, maintaining
healthy operating cash flow. Although the Group’s utilisation and
earnings fell, our financial position saw significant improvements
and our financial situation is now healthier.

Although the Euro-zone crisis may yet worsen as a result
of the recent situation in Cyprus, the low interest rate
environment in the US and loose monetary policy should
restrain any impact on the Group's export business. The Group
has been focused on developing the domestic market in China
and domestic sales now account for more than 70% of sales.
Chinese per person income has been rising strongly and GDP
has been expanding each year. The strong economic growth is
closely correlated to domestic consumption which should drive
demand for corrugated packaging. We expect China’s newly
in place leaders will introduce a series of effective economic
stimulus measures, and the Group will grasp any development
opportunities in the Chinese market when the economic
environment stabilises, thus supporting the Group's income.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

The Group remains cautiously optimistic towards the business
in the new year. The management team will closely track
the market and embrace any market needs. We will also
flexibly allocate resources and adjust business strategies in
order to improve quality and reduce risk. We are committed
to fully utilising the competitive advantages from our vertical
integration model, solidifying our market share and maintaining
stable long term growth and a healthy financial position,
delivering satisfactory profits for the Group.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and staff members for their unity in a
testing and challenging environment, and thank our customers,
suppliers, bankers and investors for their support over
the years. We will continue to maintain our operating cost
efficiency and stability to create better returns for the Group
and our shareholders.

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
28th March, 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Weaker demand in Europe and the United States (“US") in
2012 resulted in a dramatic fall in export orders for the Group.
With domestic economic growth slowing, Chinese demand
growth also fell and selling prices were under pressure.
This change, coupled with the Group’s change in strategy of
reducing sales of products with longer lead times meant sales
in the first half fell 30%. In the second half, orders and selling
prices recovered as a result of a healthier economy and sales
in the second half of the year rose by 8% compared to the first
half. For the full year of 2012, the Group's sales fell by 27%
against 2011 levels.

The Group's export sales fell by nearly 50% and domestic sales
fell by nearly 10%. The upstream containerboard business,
producing corrugating medium and linerboard, mainly supplies
to the downstream corrugated packaging business for use in
making corrugated paperboards and carton boxes, with only
limited sales to outside parties. The upstream and downstream
businesses accounted for 16% and 84% of sales, respectively,
with upstream sales down by 20% in revenue terms and 7%
in volume terms, with utilisation at 66%; the downstream saw
sales fall by 28% and volume by 15%, leaving utilisation at
63%.

In 2012, the Group's selling prices were able to be adjusted
according to raw materials prices, but some cost items such
as labour and shipping were not adjusted as a result of slowing
growth in China. That said, the Group was able to breakeven
on the back of cost controls, a reduction in raw materials
wastage, lower energy use and streamlined production costs.

As the Group reduced sales of products with a longer sales
lead time, inventories, receivables and financing requirements
fell as a result. The rights issue in June 2012 also raised
HK$42.1 million, substantially improving the debt and gearing
levels, resulting in a healthier financial status.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results

The Group recorded a fall in revenue by 27.0%, from
HK$1,440.2 million in 2011 to HK$1,051.17 million in 2012,
resulting from weak global market demand, drop in average
selling price and reduction in sales of long-cycle products.
The fall in cost of sales by 28.1% was in line with the fall in
revenue. Gross profit margin slightly improved from 15.0% to
16.2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWKR DT

The drop in other income by 53.4%, from HK$24.9 million to
HK$11.6 million, was mainly attributable to the reimbursement
of tax and other charges of HK$9.1 million in 2011. Excluding
the above mentioned, other items slid HK$4.2 million,
representing a fall by 16.9% only. The fall was primarily due to
less canteen service income received from reduced number of
staff and less scrap sales from declined production volume.

Selling and distribution costs fell 18.8% from HK$68.6 million
to HK$55.7 million. The drop was not in line with the fall
in revenue, owing to increase in petrol price for delivering
finished products to customers.

There was only a slight decline in administrative expenses by
3.1% from HK$71.1 million to HK$68.9 million. Though some
items under administrative expenses fell in line with the fall in
revenue, fees were incurred for newly raised bank loans and
staff cost kept on rising.

Other expenses slid 30.7% from HK$34.2 million to HK$23.7
million. The drop was mainly due to the interests and tax
penalty of HK$7.1 million incurred in 2011.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation and change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, excluding net cash inflow from settlement of
derivative) fell 20.8%, from HK$147.0 million to HK$116.4
million.

The rise in finance costs by 4.1%, from HK$24.4 million to
HK$25.4 million, was the results of more new bank loans
raised during the year.

Profit from operation (profit for the year before change in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, excluding net cash
inflow from settlement of derivative) slid to HK$7.6 million
from HK$38.6 million. The great fall by 80.3% was mainly due
to weak global market demand and inflation. The profit margin
from operation fell from 2.7% to 0.7%.

Profit for the year fell 23.1% from HK$26.8 million to HK$20.6
million. Basic earnings per share dropped accordingly from 5.28
HK cents to 3.33 HK cents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity, financial and capital resources

At 31st December, 2012, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents were HK$289.2 million (31st December, 2011:
HK$299.7 million), mostly denominated in Renminbi. HK$42.1
million was the net proceeds raised from the rights issue
exercise.

Net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
HK$76.7 million (31st December, 2011: HK$4.0 million) and
1.14 (31st December, 2011: 1.01) respectively.

The Group spent HK$94.2 million on capital expenditures for
annual maintenance, dock construction, and facilities upgrade
on waste water processing.

Average inventory turnover was slightly increased by 6 days,
from 63 days to 69 days. Basically, two-month shipment was
required for delivering waste paper from Europe or the US to
China.

Trust receipt loans decreased HK$72.2 million as less waste
paper was bought from overseas suppliers. The current bank
borrowings other than trust receipt loans were down by
HK$54.5 million while non-current bank borrowings were up
by HK$20.1 million. The balance for total bank borrowings net
of bank balances and cash was greatly fell by HK$95.9 million,
owing to additional funds raised from the rights issue exercise
and less funds required for financing long-cycle products. Net
gearing ratio dropped from 46.0% to 33.5%.

Contingent liabilities

The tax audits conducted by the Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD") on the Company and its subsidiaries are still on-
going for the years of assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011.
The IRD had issued protective assessments for the years of
assessment 2004/2005 to 2006/2007 to certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Objections were lodged against all these
assessments. In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the "Directors”), the outcome and impact of this matter could
not be determined with reasonable certainty at this stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

The Group expects the economy to improve after leadership
changes in the US and in the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC"). This should drive demand growth in both export
and domestic markets. That said, inflation pressures should
return. Our strategy is still to improve production efficiency,
raise sales, reduce raw materials wastage and energy usage
to combat the effects of higher costs. We will continue to
develop potential markets, take a pro-active lead in selling
prices and strive to improve profits for the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group and the processing
factory employed around 1,300 full time staff (2011:
1,300). Competitive remuneration packages were offered
to employees. The Group may also grant share options and
discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on the
performance of the Group and individuals.
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Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, aged 53, is the chairman of the Board,
the executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
business development and management of the Group. Mr. Hui
has over 28 years of experience in the corrugated packaging
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice
chairman of the Board, executive Director, and substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company), and
the spouse of Ms. Wong Mui (deputy general manager of
the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 50, is the vice chairman of the Board,
the executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui has over 28 years of experience in the
corrugated packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold
any other directorship in companies listed in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 46, is the chief executive officer and
the executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hui has joined
the Group since its establishment and is responsible for the
strategic planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
Mr. Hui has over 26 years of experience in the corrugated
packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
BEEEREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 42, is the executive Director and the
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Hui is responsible
for the financial management of the Group. Ms. Hui is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Hui worked in an
international accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May
1997.

Ms. Hui obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1992.
Ms. Hui did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Ms. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 51, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 4th
September, 2003. Mr. Chee is a practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and a senior partner of Chan Chee
Cheng & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chee
had worked in two international accounting firms in Canada
and Hong Kong. Mr. Chee is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada.

Mr. Chee obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) with Honours from Birmingham University in
1984. In addition to his appointment to the Company, Mr. Chee
is also an executive director of Mastermind Capital Limited
and a non-executive director of Bestway International Holdings
Limited and used to be an independent non-executive director
of Viva China Holdings Limited (formerly known as Coolpoint
Energy Limited), all these companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chee did not have any
relationship with any Directors, substantial shareholders and
senior management of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
BEEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan, aged 63, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 15th
July, 2010. Mr. Yip is a managing director of Guosen Securities
(HK) Capital Company Limited. Mr. Yip has over 31 years of
experience in investment, corporate finance, financial advisory
and business management. Mr. Yip has a long track record of
working with various financial institutions, including UOB Asia
(Hong Kong) Limited as a chief executive officer, and DBS Asia
Capital Ltd, Hong Kong, DBS Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong
Kong and First Chicago Hong Kong Limited as a managing
director.

Mr. Yip obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration with Honours from the National University of
Singapore (formerly known as the University of Singapore) in
1971. In addition to his appointment to the Company, Mr. Yip
is also an independent non-executive director of Powerwell
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yip did not have any
relationship with any Directors, substantial shareholders and
senior management of the Company.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 65, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 15th
September, 2004. Mr. Wong has over 28 years of experience
in enterprise management and manufacturing operation
management. Mr. Wong is a shareholder and a director of
certain metal ware and plastic ware manufacturing companies/
corporations with manufacturing plants located in the PRC.

Mr. Wong did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
BEEEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Mui, aged 47, is the deputy general manager of
the Group. Ms. Wong has worked for the Group since its
establishment and is responsible for the general administration
of the Group. Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok
(chairman of the Board, executive Director and substantial
shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Tsui Yung Wai, aged 50, is the deputy general manager
of the Group. Mr. Tsui is responsible for the supervision of
procurement, logistics and human resources of the Group. Mr.
Tsui has over 17 years of experience in corrugated packaging
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining the Group
in February 2008, Mr. Tsui was a shareholder and a director of
a corrugated packaging manufacturing company.

Mr. Tsui is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company), Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of the Board,
executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company)
and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company).

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 41, is the senior accounting
manager of the Group. Ms. Wong is responsible for overseeing
accounting operations of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a
Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in
accounting from the University of Houston — Downtown in the
United States in 1994. Ms. Wong worked in an international
accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May 2002.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERMSE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2012, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, save and except for code
provisions A.2.1, B.1.2 and C.3.3, details will be set out below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’'s securities (the “Code
of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code (the “"Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hui Sum Kwok — Chairman

Hui Sum Ping — Vice Chairman

Hui Sum Tai — Chief Executive Officer

Hui Yuen Li — Company Secretary and Member

of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and
Member of Nomination Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
and Member of Audit Committee
Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee

Chee Man Sang, Eric -

Yip Kwok Kwan -

Wong Chu Leung -

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Management Profile” on pages 10 to 13.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’'s business
development and daily management and operations generally.

The Board considers that the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear and
distinctive and hence, written terms thereof are not necessary.
This deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERMSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric has been serving as independent
non-executive Director for more than 9 years. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, his further appointment should
be subject to the passing of a separate resolution by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed
for a specific term of two years and is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management (continued)

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits
to the Company's key plant sites and meetings with senior
management of the Company.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training
courses at the Company's expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERMSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
(continued)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, all Directors
had participated in two in-house briefings on updates on
Listing Rules and related matters and had read some articles
and materials relevant to their duties and responsibilities as
Directors.

In addition, the following Directors have attended external
seminars and trainings organised by professional institutions,
qualified professional bodies or regulatory bodies.

Directors Topic

Executive Directors

Hui Sum Kwok Embracing the Economic Landscape

2012 & Beyond

Hui Sum Ping Embracing the Economic Landscape
2012 & Beyond

Hui Sum Tai Embracing the Economic Landscape
2012 & Beyond

Hui Yuen Li Embracing the Economic Landscape

2012 & Beyond, HK & PRC Tax Updates,
Latest PRC Transfer Pricing Development,
HK Advance Pricing Arrangement, HKFRS/
IFRS Updates, VAT Reform, Corporate
Governance & Regulatory Updates,
Managing Liquidity in a Dynamic Economic
Environment, Statutory Backing of
Issuer's Obligations to Disclose Inside
Information and Consequential Changes
to Listing Rules
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TEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

(continued)

Directors

Topic

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chee Man Sang, Eric Financial Reporting Updates, New

Yip Kwok Kwan

accounting standards surrounding
consolidation, joint arrangement and
related disclosures, Latest development
in HK Tax Audit Environment,
Valuation of Mining Projects, Corporate
Governance, Directors’ Duties and
Responsibilities, Highlight of the
corruption laws in HK and impact on
Directors, Entity level controls and
extended enterprise relationships

Recent Developments in Listing
Policy and Agenda Ahead, RMB
Internationalisation: Opportunities &
Challenges, Going Private, F BRI >3
FONGE, RERAN LT - FREBRA
5l REEE, IPO Communication

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit

Committee,
Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination
for overseeing particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out

under “Corporate Information” on page 2.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system, audit
plan and relationship with external auditor, and arrangements
to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,

internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim
results and report for the period ended 30th June, 2012
and annual financial results and reports for the year ended
31st December, 2012 and significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems and scope of work and appointment of

external auditor.
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TRERMSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review the
financial information in its interim report, the Audit Committee
has met with the Company’'s auditor once to discuss matters
arising from the audit of the Company's annual results and
other matters the auditor may wish to raise during the year
ended 31st December, 2012. This deviates from the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code which stipulates that the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company's auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review the
Directors’ remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors.

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is
attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. This deviates from the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code which stipulates that the Remuneration
Committee should make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all the Directors’ and senior
management remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31st December, 2012
are set out below:

Remuneration band

e E

EEZEES @)
BEREES (W)

HRARRTEZEEZEMEBEHEP RS 2UH
R BE-_Z-——F+-_A=+—HILFE B#%
ZECHRARNAZREMBIT -—AESBEUTREBSAR
RIEFEERERE  EERZEMAERECEBSE
He RELCETAZTAKRECIIGKEBBEZRE
BEHRARNRZEMBESFELBRITMAGHIRTE °

FMESES

FHEZES T EREERBEMNENATES ZHMH
T8 2BEFZHHNRRERABYRLAEETER
HER  RERIEPNIEF A S E R BB R R RE -
mEFERMEEFATAREIBBEALTAIZEEE
BEBGZHM -

FHZBEECRIT - REH UBRARRZESH
MR REE ATESCHFMFBEFRTESZ
HH -

BAl SAMEBABZHFMAARB IR R RITK
AT - ILRBERE TR 25T RIMRCEEB . 216 R E
FHNEE AR AR ERESTREMEEABRZHFMH
BRERBRAESFSRLER -

BE_ZT-——F+_A=+—RHLFE SHI&KE

BEKBEZHMRAERE D 2 BEINT -

Number of senior management

SREEASHE

Nil — HK$1,000,000 0—1,000,0007% 7T
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TEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualification of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management,
the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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TRERBRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held during the year ended 31st December, 2012 is
set out in the table below:

EENRZEERECHEESRTE

REEREE T ——F+_A=Z+—BLFERT
PEEESER EFZTECCHNARAREAFAK
G2 HFREHINN T

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HiE&E8A
Annual

Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEnR EEg FMEES EREEE REZEE RREFKE
Hui Sum Kwok 5/5 N/A 2/3 N/A 1Al
BT AR EY 3 A @A
Hui Sum Ping 5/5 N/A 2/3 N/A 1Al
FFARTE T A TERA
Hui Sum Tai 5/5 N/A 2/3 N/A 1Al
PR TEM 3 A
Hui Yuen Li 5/5 Al 3/3 1Al 1Al
ST IR
Chee Man Sang, Eric 5/5 11 3/3 11 01
MERAE
Yip Kwok Kwan 5/5 N/A 3/3 1Al 0/1
EEY A
Wong Chu Leung 5/5 11 3/3 1Al 11
S )
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held BEHESEgg#/ REEZE-_T——-F+=A4

meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of executive Directors during the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2012.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties

relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT
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TEERBRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 42 to 43.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to the external auditor
of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of
audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 is set out below:

Service Category

PR35 % 51

EERBYBHRR2ET 2

ARRBIGBMERERRYBRER2ETEZBH
N FA22A3E BB RE] A -

B BE 2 %7 A

REE T —F+-_A=+—HILEE2ELXRYE
MIEBEZREARADGIINEZEMES HER TS
HEMITZ S EH B DTS T

Fees Payable
ENER

HK$

BT

EZ RS
FEZRES

Audit Services
Non-audit Services

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors.
All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

1,600,000
715,000

2,315,000

WEBEE 12

BE_T——F+_A=T—HIFE EFEERK
AARAZARMEEGEME  BRERIEHME
AEEERGHRYBHABRIETERERLR UK
mEF2EIIFEREH -

IR 2 7

RREBRRZFAREN AARERZEBIEKN
MR (BIRERERHNES) RERASREBILRESR
RIBLETRA AAERBRAG LR ZREREAMN
BREFTARR RELARBRETRERRZZBRR
RE|BITREARB LB A2 WU ETE -
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TRERMSE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Board does not aware of any provisions allowing the
shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company under the Company's
Articles of Association and the Cayman Islands Law (2012
Revision). Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meeting may refer to the preceding paragraph to
make a written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are published on the
Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Workshops E, F and H, 22nd Floor, Superluck
Industrial Centre (Phase 2), No. 57 Sha Tsui Road
and Nos. 30-38 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chief Executive Officer/
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2414 5508

Email: hopfung@hopfunggroup.com

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Contact Details (continued)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, the independent non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

AMENDMENTS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Company
has amended its Articles of Association. Details of the
amendments are set out in the circular dated 20th April, 2012
to the shareholders. An up-to-date version of the Company’'s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange's website.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

Subsequent to publication of the 2012 Interim Report of the
Company, Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric has been appointed as
the non-executive director of Bestway International Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) with effect
from 10th January, 2013.

R 2R ()
B4R ()

RRER BRABHIAREFZEEER BAKL
BRERERHRERME) 2 EAR i - WHH
BE2H BEFERFD  WERRFEIE - KR
BERATRERBOEEREM TIARE -

ERRBEBERREEBRRE

ARRRE BERRRFEVER  HREREER
BRMAREEHAEEXFRARKBEEE/E
R ARABIRFEABRRZENEFE  LEZES
BRBFAREREMBRRAE -

E=eIR BUNMTESEMAEFEZBEEZE
F(EEFIAR)BHERRBEFAE  BERREE
WEEREZRMA -

B ASEREAMA

BHE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HLEFE £TRaHEF]
HAHESRMA - Bl cHBERBBER-ZE—=F
WMAZ+HZBREBRA - BEARAREBERREA
Bl 27 B8 AR 2R IR A BA AN 2 R 48 U R Bt A P AR Uk S B o

ESERED
RAUBARRA B -——FRERER BRELER

ZERBRBEBEERBERAR (—HARBEIALEHZ
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on page 44.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group for the years from 2008 to 2012 is set out on page
120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, the Company issued 241,462,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per

rights share pursuant to rights issue.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of the movement in the share premium and reserves
of the Group during the year, are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 46.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Hui Yuen Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan
Mr. Wong Chu Leung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’'s Articles
of Association, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Ms. Hui Yuen Li and Mr.
Chee Man Sang, Eric shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years
commencing on 15th September, 2012, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’' notice in writing
served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in Management
Profile on pages 10 to 13.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options during the year:

TERBEARRBRERFAZES :

RABIBIRES S 2HBHN A M WMKRME25

Exercise Exercise Adjustment
price per price per  Outstanding in respect  Outstanding
Option Date of share (before  share (after at beginning of Rights at end of
Category type grant  adjustment) adjustment)  of the year Issue the year
Lol BhRE BRTRE SROEE 4 BRER R
EE REARE (EREH) (8824 AT R HRTE
(Note 1) HKS HKS (Note 3)
(W) B BT (h3E3)
(Note 3) (Note 3)
(F3E3) (Fir3E3)
Directors
EZ
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (Note 2)  E 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 4,828,000 862,281 5,690,281
SRR LA (H3E2)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping £ 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 4,828,000 862,281 5,690,281
HRTEE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai £ 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 4,828,000 862,281 5,690,281
TRERE
Ms. Hui Yuen Li E 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 1,100,000 196,460 1,296,460
SFRAT L
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric £ 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 120,000 21,432 141,432
MRELE
Mr. Wong Chu Leung E 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 120,000 21,432 141,432
ERRAE
15,824,000 2,826,167 18,650,167
Other employees E 7.7.2009 0.752 0.638 9,228,000 1,648,120 10,876,120
EthES
Total for all categories
2HER 25,052,000 4,474,287 29,526,287

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options granted is determined
by Directors at each time when the options are granted.
Holders of share options granted under the Company's share
option scheme may only exercise their options during the
exercisable periods as follows:

Option type E

BREE
GEE
1 BHBRE B E ER SRR MR -

ARBBRESETHERESEAETRATITRS
TR S 2 A

Maximum % of share options exercisable

EEBERE AIEERECREEE A
1.5.2010 - 30.4.2011 up to 50%
= A #50%

1.56.2011 - 30.4.2012

1.5.2012 - 30.4.2013

2. Mr. Hui Sum Kwok was directly interested in 5,100,981 type E
share options and was deemed to be interested in 589,300 type
E share options owned by Ms. Wong Mui, who is the spouse
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and a member of the senior management
of the Group.

3. The number and exercise price of the outstanding share options
were adjusted as a result of the completion of the rights issue
in July, 2012.

At 31st December, 2012, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 29,526,287, representing approximately
4.08% of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

The existing share option scheme of the Company will expire
on 4th September, 2013. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to approve the adoption of
a new share option scheme.

up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)

& ETS% (ABKITEEAR)

up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

= A E100% (A AITEEBR)

2. FFRE A R5,100,98 1 HEE IR P BEEEER
YR AEREEL L (FRRALEZEBRAEESH
BB E) %A 2589,300 EBBIERH AR -

3. HMRE-Z-—FLARKRER  HARTEBREZ
HERITEELDHE -

RZE——F+-_A=+—H BEZAERLEmE
RITEEAE S K& 2 DB 529,526,287 » 4915
ANaEE BB ETRMDAE08% °

RARBEBEREABER —T—=F N AMBEW °
REERRBFAE LIRS - FRBRMLAERAN
Bk & -
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

EERRG  NHBERORES 2ER

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2012, the
interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

(a) Shares

B EXXCREE S

HRRKBWT :
(a)

R-E——F+-_A=+—8" &
BARNFRBES RHEGRI ((ZHERBEGM]) E
3522 M EBEF 2 E R MATac 8% - kiR & E W 81T
ABEZETEARGNBETAEMERRE RER
g EFERNAQAREBARIE (EERESHF L
BIEPIEXVE) 2 h - RO RESHHEE 2 E

Approximate

Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERATRE
BESpZ KRR/ RELEEE 57 BEBERER BOEIN
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Founder of a discretionary 385,058,793 shares 53.16%
SHRALE NG trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 385,058,793 & 7
ZEETELAN/ iF& (B
REEEREE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Beneficial owner 15,192,000 shares 2.10%
HRELE N EREEA Long position
15,192,0008 i 12
ife
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of spouse 750,000 shares 0.10%
TREALE NG [NEpa Long position
750,008 B 2
e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 385,058,793 shares 53.16%
HRTLE NG trust / interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 385,058,793 K 7
REETELA/ if& (Bt
REEEREE
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 11,841,000 shares 1.63%
HRTLRE YN EREBA Long position

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT
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EEEHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

EERRG  HERORES 2ER (®)

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) M@ #E)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERARE
3 ARE/HEEEER 5% BEHARER BB
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of a controlled Nil (Note 1) -
AREEE VNG| corporation & (F&E)
REEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 9,369,000 shares 1.29%
HFERLE NG| EREEA Long position
9,369,000 #& 7
&
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 5,505,000 shares 0.76%
FmALL YN EREBA Long position
5,505,000 213
ife
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric ~ Company Beneficial owner 96,000 shares 0.01%
HRERE N EZHAA Long position
96,000 f i 17
ffE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Limited Founder of a discretionary 7,886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
FREEE ("Hop Fung Industries”) trust / interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7,8%68 SR AE0.01E L 21D
2EETETA/ ife (WE1k2)
XEzEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7,886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
HRTRE trust / interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7,886%% ERREE0.01% T2 K in
2REEFETA/ e (M R2)
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 857 shares of US$0.01 each 8.57%
FRREE EREBA Long position (Notes 1 and 2)

857R BRAE0.01ET LR
2 (1 R2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

EERRG - HERORES 2EH (4

i

(a) Shares (continued) (a) KB E)
Approximate
Company / percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERARE
BEEpZ RAR/RELEEE 57 BEBERER BAEIE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
FHREALE (Holdings) Limited of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
(“Hop Fung Industries BVI") interest of a controlled 5,000 B R EE.01E T 2R
corporation e (FF1R3)
ExEEN/
PEETEIA/
XErEER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries BVI Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
HRTRE of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
interest of a controlled 5,000 B R EE0.01E T 27
corporation i (1K)
EnBA/
2EETEIA/
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Gong Ming Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
SRELE Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
(“Hop Fung GM") RREES Long and short positions
RRRLHMEERAR (Notes 1and 4)
(lagnH]) 3,000,000 R &
BT ERZEELR
e RAE (Hi1R4)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung GM Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE ALLH trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2RETEIA/ (Notes 1 and 4)
REEEER 3,000,000 & R E &
BT ERZEERR
FERKE (HH1R4)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1 and 4) -
HHEEEE AEQH corporation / short & (W1 Ra)

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERRG  HERORES 2ER (®)

(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) M@ #E)
Approximate
Company/ percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HERARE
3 ARE/HEEEER 5% BEHARER BB
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Fung Kong Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
SHALE Paper Ware Factory Limited corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
("Hop Fung FG") XErEER Long and short positions
FEtEEnmaRAT (Notes 1, 4 and b)
E=)) 3,000,000 & R E &
BT EREREER
FRRAR (Bt 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung FG Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRTEE ALEHE trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2EEFATA/ [Notes 1, 4 and 5)
RzERs 3,000,000 8 REE
BT BRERELR
TR RAKE (M1 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1, 4 and 5) -
RRRAE ALEH corporation / short & (131 - 4R5)
position of a controlled
corporation
XpiEER/
REZEAE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Applewood Forest Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 1 share of US$1 100%
SREALE PEETELA Long position (Notes 1 and 6)
1REE1ET 2R
it e (M1 ke)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Luck Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 100 shares of HK$1 100%
HRELE MEERAF PREETALA Long position (Notes 1, 6 and 7)
100 8RAEEET KR
78 (31 - 6R7)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Sun Limited Founder of a discretionary trust 1 share of HK$1 100%
FREE BHNERAR RREETEUA Long position (Notes 1, 6, 7 and 8)
REEIETZRG

#E (5164 7K8)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung
Industries. The issued share capital of Hop Fung
Industries is owned as to 78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57%
by Hop Fung Industries BVI, Delight Ocean Limited
("Delight”) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI
is owned as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19%
by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood
Holdings Limited (“Fullwood”) and Goldspeed Holdings
Limited (“Goldspeed”) respectively. Fullwood is wholly
owned by Pinecity Investments Limited (“Pinecity”)
and Pinecity is wholly owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited ("HSBC") in its capacity as the trustee
of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust
the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”)
and Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC in its capacity
as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested
in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

Hop Fung Industries is a holding company of the
Company and therefore an associated corporation of
the Company under the SFO. The entire issued share
capital of Hop Fung Industries is US$100 divided into
10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which is owned as to
7,886, 1,257 and 857 shares by Hop Fung Industries
BVI, Delight and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum
Ping is deemed to be interested in the 7,886 shares of
US$0.01 each in Hop Fung Industries.

Hop Fung Industries BVI is a holding company of Hop
Fung Industries and therefore an associated corporation
of the Company under the SFO. The entire issued
share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is US$100
divided into 10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which is
owned as to 1,181, 1,181, 3,819 and 3,819 shares by
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and
Goldspeed respectively. Under the SFO, each of Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is interested and/
or deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 5,000
shares of US$0.01 each in Hop Fung Industries BVI.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a)

Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop
Fung GM is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group (HK) Limited
("Hop Fung Group HK") which is owned as to 91.43%
and 8.57% by Hop Fung Holdings Limited (“Hop Fung
Holdings (BVI)"”), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Holdings (BVI) is
owned as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Goldspeed respectively.
Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui
Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group Company Limited (“Hop Fung Group
(BVI)"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
an option to purchase from them such 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr.
Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short position in
the underlying shares of the option granted under the
option deed pursuant to the SFO.

Hop Fung FG is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop
Fung FG is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG are
beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group HK. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping
is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group (BVI) an option to purchase from them
such 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1
each in Hop Fung FG. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short
position in the underlying shares of the option granted
under the option deed pursuant to the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)
Notes: (continued)

6. Applewood Forest Limited (“Applewood") is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire
issued share capital of Applewood is US$1 comprising
1 share of US$1 which is wholly owned by Pinecity
and is ultimately owned by HSBC in its capacity as the
trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust. Applewood
is an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to
be interested in the 1 share of US$1 in Applewood.

7. Profit Luck Limited (“PLL") is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of PLL
is HK$100 comprising 100 shares of HK$1 each which
is directly owned by Applewood, a company indirectly
owned by HSBC through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Pinecity. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed
to be interested in the 100 shares of HK$1 each in
PLL ultimately owned by HSBC in its capacity as the
trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust. Details of
Applewood are set out in note 6 above.

8. Profit Sun Limited (“PSL") is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of PSL
is HK$1 comprising 1 share of HK$1 which is directly
owned by Applewood, a company indirectly owned by
HSBC through its wholly owned subsidiary, Pinecity.
Under the SFO, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to be
interested in the 1 share of HK$1 in PSL ultimately
owned by HSBC in its capacity as the trustee of Hui &
Wong 2004 Family Trust. Details of Applewood are set
out in note 6 above.

(b) Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests
in share options of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2012.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2012, the following shareholders had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company:

FERR

RIB-——F+-A=+—H0 BEXQFRZRES
R GG FEBGRFEZELMALTHEKAE AR
Al TARREREN AR R B A AR A 00 T A s ok

KA
KR

Approximate

Number percentage of
Number of of share issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held options held Note(s) EERITRE
BRREE 2 L) BEERTRAHA FMEBREHA Mt 5 BREIH
Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 385,058,793 - 1 53.16%
ERBEEA
Hop Fung Industries BVI Interest of a controlled corporation 385,058,793 - 1,2 53.16%
REEEER
Fullwood Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,234 53.16%
REEEER
Pinecity Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,4 53.16%
REEEER
Goldspeed Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,235 53.16%
REEEER
Goldkeen Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,5 53.16%
REEEER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust 385,058,793 - 1,2,3,4,5 53.16%
PREIRTA
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner / founder of a 401,000,793 5,690,281 1,2,34,6 56.14%
HRELE discretionary trust / interest of
controlled corporations / interest of
spouse
EalAEAN/ 2RETEVA/
RErERE RREER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner / founder of a 396,899,793 5,690,281 1,2,3,5, 7 55.58%
FRFEE discretionary trust / interest of
controlled corporations
EnBAEAN/2RETEVA/
REEEER
Hallgain Management Interest of controlled corporations 102,546,000 - 8 14.16%
Limited ("Hallgain”) XEERER
Montpelier Investment Investment manager 39,394,000 - - 5.44%
Management LLP REKE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Notes:
1. The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries.

2. The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned
as to 78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Industries
BVI, Delight and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively and Hop Fung
Industries BVI is deemed to be interested in the 385,058,793
shares under the SFO.

3. The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is owned
as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and Goldspeed respectively.

4. The entire issued share capital of Fullwood is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Pinecity in
its capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Accordingly, each of Fullwood, Pinecity,
HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed to be interested in the
385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

5. The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen
in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed,
Goldkeen, HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be
interested in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

6. Of 406,691,074 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested
in 1,339,300 shares and is deemed to be interested in
405,351,774 shares of the Company under the SFO as she is
the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, the Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

7. Ms. Jian Jian Yi is deemed to be interested in 402,590,074
shares under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Ping,
the Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

8. Hallgain is deemed to be interested in 102,546,000 shares.
Hallgain held 34.09% of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
(“Kingboard Chemical”) which is directly interested in the
shares of the Company. Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”)
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingboard Chemical. Jamplan
wholly owns Kingboard Investments Limited which is directly
interested in the shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st December,
2012.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31st December, 2012.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. In addition, save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors, their spouse or children
under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such right
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company is or was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2012, the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 13% of the Group's
turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 58% of the
Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 19% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's
five largest suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any related party
transactions or continuing related party transactions which fall
under the definition of “Connected Transaction” or “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which shall oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$80,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors strive to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The corporate governance principles of
the Company emphasise the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders.
The Company has met the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31st December, 2012,
except with the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

o Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

o There are no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer respectively
are clear and distinctive and hence written terms
thereof are not necessary.

Code Provision B.1.2

o A deviation from the code provision B.1.2 is that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews
and makes recommendations to the Directors on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors only
but not the senior management.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &®iZiRERAHT

BEXS

FAAEBELEFTLAEMEB ETRFEVGAZIR
EIAEXZ R FERERZ | 2HBEALR SR
BREALRS -

BEBERE

AARZABERANIHASEEAPL EAREEL
BERE G BEARRBIARZEIIRARARRIER
BEMK -

B

FA - ANEEFEHEEBFAB0,0008 T

EXRNMHFSKTEEER  UWRABRREERR
ERRER - ARBZEEERRABATEESS
BYAEERARRAECERE BE_FT—=
FT-A=1T—BULFE ARRENHEBIMES
LR A SR 4R DR E R RIFTEL 2 ST IR -
AT 2w BEBR O -

SFRIMESCA.2.11%

o THAIBXA2IGRELTFETRAR CBESR
EEBREMEIE  WAFmMIIH o

e ARAYEBEBEMINHETFRTRAH 2BAESR
CEERR TRETHAHSAZBENSA
PRERTE  WEARANRENET 2 BERLE -

<F Al & XX B.1.21%

o  RERSTANENB.1.2(8  EHBEEARLD BEH M
ZEEERATEST (MIFRRRERRE) 25
Mo RETRIRAEFEHELERS -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

Code Provision B.1.2 (continued)
o Currently, the remuneration of the senior management

is attended by the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Code Provision C.3.3

o Code Provision C.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditor.

o Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to

review the financial information in its interim report, the
Audit Committee has met with the Company’s auditor
once a year to discuss matters arising from the audit
of the Company’s annual results and other matters the
auditor may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has
met with the Company's auditor once during the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the
Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
28th March, 2013
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 44 to 119, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28th March, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEZEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
B 5 THERx FHET
Revenue & 7 1,051,097 1,440,233
Cost of sales 4 & AR (880,542) (1,224,150)
Gross profit EA 170,555 216,083
Other income Ha g A 8 11,556 24,875
Selling and distribution costs HE R HKA (55,714) (68,624)
Administrative expenses THAX (68,878) (71,108)
Other expenses HAb (23,717) (34,181)
Finance costs BA TS 7R 9 (25,412) (24,370)
Changes in fair value of derivative PTEEBIA
financial instruments NTEZEE 19 18,444 (5,815)
Profit before taxation IR bE 26,834 36,860
Income tax expense FriS#i X 10 (6,245) (10,067)
Profit for the year, attributable to ZN/NEIE 2N
owners of the Company FE A 11 20,589 26,793
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEH M2 Mk :
Exchange differences arising from MEBINETE 2
translation of foreign operations PEH E% 31,750 60,536
Total comprehensive income for the year, AR AI#HB AEEFEE
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEMEEEE 52,339 87,329
(Restated)
(&%)
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Earnings per share syl 14
- basic — &R 3.33 5.28
— diluted —#58 3.33 5.27

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT




AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
S e s =]

2012 2011
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
bz FHET FAT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 15 1,398,415 1,352,900
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights =t i Fi # & {4 70 & 08 16 23,216 23,486
1,421,631 1,376,386
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 17 143,637 188,288
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H i & WA 18 175,216 193,336
Deposits and prepayments & RTE R 12,642 6,923
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights + b {# FE BN A EZ0E 16 621 613
Derivative financial instruments MmESmITA 19 1,489 728
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERS 20 289,159 299,747
622,764 689,635
Current liabilities REEE
Trade, bills and other payables 25 ZEBREHMENKIE 21 221,339 213,783
Taxation payable FET R IE 10,501 18,765
Derivative financial instruments TEeHTA 19 1,186 13,432
Unsecured bank borrowings EERRITEE 22 313,049 439,674
546,075 685,654
Net current assets RBEEFEE 76,689 3,981
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEME 1,498,320 1,380,367
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital % 2 23 72,439 48,292
Share premium and reserves & 1 5 (8 f & s 1,041,968 971,613
Total equity, attributable to owners AATEEAELEREE
of the Company 1,114,407 1,019,805
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Unsecured bank borrowings EERRITEE 22 349,554 329,428
Deferred taxation RIER I 24 34,359 31,134
383,913 360,562
1,498,320 1,380,367
The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 119 were MNBAUBI1I9B B BERREN_E—=4F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on At )\BEEEESH ERKEZER THT
28th March, 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: JEERKREE
DIRECTOR Z% DIRECTOR £%
HUI SUM KWOK 7 E HUI SUM PING 7 ¥
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SRERBE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

Share
Share Share Special  Translation options Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RA  ROEE  BHRE  EXRE BRERE REIE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T T T FEL T T T
(Note)
(hzE)

t Tst January, 2011 WZE——%—-f—H 48,292 425,382 (107,444) 45,958 15,955 519,823 947,966
Profit for the year EEFH - - - - - 26,793 26,793
Exchange differences arising from R EEHNERZ

translation of foreign operations ERLZBRER

and total other comprehensive LR eal etk

income for the year - - - 60,536 - - 60,536
Total comprehensive income FEXANRESE
for the year - - - 60,536 - 26,793 87,329
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRELE

share-based payments MRH X2 - - - - 929 = 929
Final dividend paid in respect of BE=Z-ZF

2010 {note 13) AHRE (FE13) - - - - - (16,419) (16,419)
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F

+-A=1+-H 48,292 425,382 (107,444) 106,494 16,884 530,197 019,805

Profit for the year FENE - - - = = 20,589 20,589
Exchange differences arising from BERNERZ

translation of foreign operations EREZERER

and total other comprehensive LzAENEEE

income for the year - - - 31,750 - - 31,750
Total comprehensive income FEE2ANREE
for the year - - - 31,750 - 20,589 52,339
Recognition of equity-settled RRELE

share-based payments MRH Rz - - = = 204 = 204
Issue of shares under rights issue RE#RETRR 24,147 19,316 - - = = 43,463
Share issue expenses BIROAY - (1,404) - - = = (1,404)
At 31st December, 2012 RZE-_F

+-A=+-H 72,439 443,294 (107,444) 138,244 17,088 550,786 114,407

Note: B 3E
Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of ﬁﬂlj1§ﬁ1ﬁ#§$@ TR B AT 2 EKALEE EE LR 3B

investments in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate amount
of the non-voting deferred share capital of Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper
Ware Factory Limited and Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory
Limited and the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the group reorganisation in 2003.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
2 eI Fll e

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Allowance for inventories
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
on land use rights
Interest income
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

(Increase) decrease in deposits and
prepayments

Increase in trade, bills and other payables

Settlement of derivative financial
instruments, net

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refund

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

RETH

I RAINE
B AT 2 -

B RRAR
BHRYHIAZBEREE
FERE

ME - BERRETE

B o+ i AR
HEMIEA

M A

HEME  WEK R\
(Yzd) B518

AR D XA 2 32
TTEeMIAERATAE

mBEZEBAIEE
RERE

7 &

B 5 N Ho A fE Y R IR R
B& MIEMR G 0) R D

B 5 R ME AR SIRIE
LTE ST ALE - 55

BEEAZRE
SR PREH
REIFFEH

RETHEEZHEFE

REES
WHEME - BE MR
B KA B
HEWE - BB MR
TS 3R IR

RETBEAZREFE

2012
HK$’ 000
FTERx
26,834
25,412
185

151

76,587

616
(2,924)

(109)
204

(18,444)
108,512
44,500

21,346

(5,719)
6,142

5,437

180,218
(11,284)

168,934

(92,786)
2,924

544

(89,318)

2011
HK$' 000
THET
36,860
24,370
256

64

73,389

607
(1,083)

555
929

5,815
141,762
47,888

59,467

5,293
22,368

6,004
282,782
(7,542)
)

275,245

(133,470)
1,083

736

(131,651)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
e e S = e El et

Financing activities

New bank loans raised

Other bank borrowings drawn
(Decrease) increase in trust receipt loans
Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other bank borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares

Expenses on issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31st December
represented by bank balances and cash

BMEEE

I RITE R
REOEMBRITEE

fE IR & R OR 2 ) 48 4
EERITER
BEHEMBITEE
BT PG 30R
BTRMAX

EIREE

2 A8

METHEAZREFEE

RERBEESEE(RD)
12 0 AR

R—A—-HHER
Re%E

EXEBH o XE
R+=-—A=+—H

REREEEHE
RITESREE S
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2012
HK$'000
FHEx

347,724

933,152
(72,158)
(363,888)
(957,715)

43,463
(1,404)

(25,412)

(96,238)

(16,622)

299,747

6,034

289,159

2011
HK$" 000
THET

254,360
934,034
15,882
(310,983)
(906,352)

(16,419)
(24,370)

(563,848)

89,746

203,125

6,876

299,747



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Hop Fung Industries
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and its ultimate parent is Hop Fung Industries
(Holdings) Limited, a company also incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The address of the registered office
of the Company is disclosed under Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 32.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets; and

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Ml REBI 2 EBMBREE
BUBHREERL]) ZER @)

Al (T&

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEWERZER THEBMGEMKRERZH
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet NI EA M KR E AL

effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs ERMBREEN 2 BT —EENFEE——F

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 Cycle' BENEEMBREED
M !
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets BRI REERETR RE-RENBEERSE
and Financial Liabilities' ZERT BE

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 ERMBRE RSN BRRBREEREH

and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures® REBG B RS ZERHARBE KBS
EIR 2B &
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint ERBERELRZ109 GAMBER AERHER
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and Disclosure of ERUBREENENS RENEMERBNOES
Interests in Other Entities: Transition LEBUBREESD BEMEI
Guidance' E12% 2 57]
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities? ERMBREERE10% REER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 BEMBRSEAE 125
REBGH RS
ZIBET
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BEM K]S LA FER ERIA
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements' BREMBREERZE1057 RAEMBHRE'
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ ERMBREENENR RERH
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ ERMBREENE 2% RENEHERENER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement' BREMBREER 137 ATEHE
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits' BEEGHENE19% EEEA
(ZZ——FEEI)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements' BRGHENETR BUPBRE
(ZZ——FEEI)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and R G ERE28% REERRRAECERE
Joint Ventures' (Z2——F&E3])

Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income*

BRG RS IR BT

2IEMEEREER

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial BERGHERENR 2] REMBEAERYBERE
Liabilities?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase &% (BB ERmE BABRGEERB HE
of a Surface Mine! 2AEZEQ)-2EF20% A

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2013

—E-=F A HENRARZFEREE

i
3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 2 RZFE—NF—A A UNERBR2EEHBE
January, 2014 i

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 3 R-ZT—RAF— B — AR AZEEHEE
January, 2015 3

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2 R-FE——FtA—H U BRABZFEHRBE
2012 3

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
F—ff A —ALFE

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to change in financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.
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HERIFEATFEGE - 1IN REBBETH
SRS - EEE A fE L N ] e iE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January, 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
9 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1st
January, 2015 and that the application of this new
Standard will not have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’'s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1st January, 2013 and
that the application of this new Standard may result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and
income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1,
a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as
a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1st July, 2012. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

E——Ff —A=+—HIFFE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated using
the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
R E— A= —HIFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE_F——F+_A=1—HIFE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

E——Ff —A=+—HIFFE

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments recognised in profit or loss include any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period ranged from 5 to 150 days, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
R E— A= —HIFE

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE_F——F+_A=1—HIFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liability classified as
at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise financial liabilities
held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and
other payables and unsecured bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE_F——F+_A=1—HIFE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When some or all of the expenditure required to settle
tax or other liabilities are expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement is recognised in
income and as an asset when it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments on land use rights” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme/
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Derivative financial instruments, including foreign
exchange forward contracts, are carried at the end of
the reporting period at fair value as disclosed in note
19. The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in
an active market. Where quoted prices are not available
for a particular financial instrument, the directors of
the Company use valuation techniques with observable
market inputs to the extent available to estimate the fair
value. The use of methodologies, models and assumptions
in pricing and valuing these financial assets and liabilities
is subjective and requires varying degrees of judgement
by management, which may result in significantly different
fair values and results.

EREAARNEESANK NS A BRER - AR
RIEFAHAREE MU EMIREENEER
BEREEELHE  E5tRER - ZFREFTR
HERREREBELRIMERAS/EBNEME
EMiEL - ERBERRGERFEAERATR -

% %ﬁﬁ&*ﬁ@ﬁ?&ﬁ,\—iritiﬁlﬁ'?ﬁ EAFHERT
REEZEY - SFHEFTHEIENZ A RER

BRI 1&1qu1 AR E AR R ARKEIAE - RIgat
aJrE’\Jf’/}ETAE’\ﬂ% FTHIRR R AR AR -

RBEHR  ARRKEZREARBAMGE R
RTARARRZEMEBZRFENT - ZEBRRTF
EEYT-HMRFEEELRABRAERIEAR
HAENEARRE

AN FE19RT L - DT A S R T A (B E & 5
R DR MERREATFEAR R FEZR
EREANERMETZHBE - WABESRHTA
REDGSHRE  ARAREFTERAAIRS AR
EMEHEBEEERDHIGELTE REZFY
BEENABEEBRGERMKRMB 2L  ER
EEBERDBEFHNL TRERBEFLETIEEZ
# B ﬁﬁﬁf@#u&ﬁ‘ﬁz@ HERBATRZQF
BN

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 FE#%

69



70

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the directors of the
Company would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values based on latest market
prices and current economic conditions. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already made
may be required.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the directors of the Company take into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the directors
of the Company estimate the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according to
their experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually. If the expectations differ from the
previous estimates, the changes will be accounted for
prospectively as changes in accounting estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 22, net
of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

EXEREE

AERASHRTEERTRESELE A%
EHEAARTEE  WEBREBRBAER
BT EMARERGBADS - AEHGERE
K ST RBTE -

AEENERARBERREZRERASFEBRZ
BBEFR(EPREMI22MTEEZEE) AR
RAREA AR (BRECEITRARER) -

RAREETEHMRATEARRE - (ERRF A — B
7 BEREERESRARBEEANHEERR -
REAQNREENER  AREHEBKTERE -
BITH - BEBROURBTHERXBELRE
B BUTEERBERERS -

TMIA

(a) EBMT A z2E5

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THERT AT
Financial assets & E
Derivative financial instruments PEARBEEEZITAE
classified as held for trading E@MIT A 1,489 728
Loans and receivables (including B X & E W ZKIA
cash and cash equivalents) (PR ERESEEH) 464,375 493,083
465,864 493,811
Financial liabilities HEEE
Derivative financial instruments DEABEREZITA
classified as held for trading @ THE 1,186 13,432
Amortised cost B AR 883,942 982,885
885,128 996,317
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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The Group's major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, trade, bills and other
payables and unsecured bank borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The directors of the Company manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

(i)  Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group’s sales is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and HKD and
significant portion of the Group's purchases is
denominated in RMB and United States dollars
("USD"). The Group's manufacturing operations
are located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, trade receivables, trade, bills and
other payables and unsecured bank borrowings
are denominated in the foreign currencies of
the relevant group entities. The directors of the
Company monitor foreign exchange exposure
and manage it by entering into certain foreign
exchange structured forward contracts as set
out in note 19.
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j:

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities (continued)

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts
of the Group’'s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are as follows:

RMB AR
HKD BT
usb ETT

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. Sensitivity rate of 5% represents the
assessment of the directors of the Company
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the foreign currency exposure
in relation to the HKD and USD exchange rate
fluctuation is not significant as HKD is pegged
to USD. For this reason, the sensitivity analysis
below does not reflect this.
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2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FAT FExT FAT
3,123 2,919 266 189
13,194 13,215 151,371 78,678
2,972 12,719 90,132 44,498
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact
relates to monetary assets or liabilities that
are denominated in RMB or HKD against the
functional currencies of relevant group entities,
HKD or RMB respectively.

In relation to monetary assets, where the
functional currency of the relevant group entity
strengthens 5% against the currency in which
the assets are denominated, there would be
a decrease in profit for the year. However,
in relation to monetary liabilities, where the
functional currency of the relevant group entity
strengthens 5% against the currency in which
the liabilities are denominated, there would be
an increase in profit for the year.

A 5% weakening of the functional currency
would have an equal but opposite impact on the
profit for the year.

3B Ot 4>) 32

(Decrease) increase
in profit

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Foreign exchange structured forward contracts

During the year, the Group has entered into
several foreign exchange structured forward
contracts with banks, details are disclosed in
note 19. These derivatives are not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group’s foreign
exchange structured forward contracts exposed
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The directors of the Company consider that the
exposure of HKD against USD is limited as HKD
is pegged to USD.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to the
Group's forward exchange rate risk for contracts
of RMB against USD at the reporting date.

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against
USD had been 5% higher/lower while all other
input variables of the valuation models were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year
would decrease/increase by HK$12,933,000/
HK$282,000 (2011: decrease/increase by
HK$4,785,000/HK$832,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year. Details of the terms of the
leveraged foreign exchange forward contracts
are set out in note 19.
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Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note
22 for details of these borrowings), bank balances
and deposits. The directors consider that the interest
rate risk on bank balances and deposits are minimal,
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") and prime rate arising from
the Group's borrowings denominated in HKD and
RMB respectively.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
Increase or decrease in a 50 basis point represents
the assessment of the directors of the Company of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates. For
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, if interest rates had been 50
basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2012 would decrease/
increase by HK$3,313,000 (2011: HK$3,646,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest
rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2012,
the Group has available undrawn borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$202,421,000 (2011:
HK$249,918,000). The Group monitors its current
and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable
financial institutions to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TERITA#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEEBREEREREE(E)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBELEE (&
Liquidity and interest risk tables HEEERFIE K
Weighted On
average demand or Total
effective  less than 13 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  1month  month(s) to1year 1-2years) 2-5years cashflows  amount
mETE  %ER9  -fERE A ARRE

EBRAE @AM ZER  E-F -FEMF WEELF REAE  REE
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TRz Tz Tz  TEz  TEx  Ténr  Tin

2012 -g--&
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 B % & &
Trade, bills and other payables 25 RERAMENTE - M3 - - - - 21339 221,339
Unsecured bank borrowings BERRAEE
- variable rate -%8 39 43,948 134,369 156,577 333,329 30,888 699,111 662,603
265,287 134,369 156,577 333,329 30,888 920,450 883,942
201 2%--F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ i £H%E%
Trade, bills and other payables 25 ZEREMERTE - 213783 = = = - 213,783 213,783
Unsecured bank borrowings BHEARNES
- variable rate -%8 37 167,878 183,944 110,278 100,354 218,261 780,715 729,102
- fixed rate -E8 06 - - - - 40779 40779 40,000

381,661 183944 110278 100364 269,040 1,036,277 982,885
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31st December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$30,685,000 and
HK$65,922,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the
management reviews the expected cash flow
information of the Group's bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement
as set out in the table below:

On
demand or
less than 1-3
1 month month(s)
CESE] -fifz
-fAR =fA
HKS' 000 HKS$' 000
ThR TEn
2012 —g_-k
Bank borrowings with a FEURREXER
repayment on demand clause B2 BT E 11,207 4,590
201 Z¥--F
Bank horrowings with a FEUREEXRE
repayment on demand clause B RITEE 1,789 19,500

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

3 months
to 1 year
=fEA
E-f
HK$'000
ThR

15,148

24,647

REBELEE (E)
RBED RF LR (B)

BEENBEREREERAZRITERESR
AL B BB TR RERL—@A RN
HE - -R_T——F+_A=+—HER=Z
——F+-f=+—8 ZERTEZHNE
ZRITRINSREB 5 A£30,685,000/8 7T
%.65,922,000/8 7T © 488 KA & B B 15 AR
% EBHERITETSTERTERAR
BRZBIERER -

REEBRDELRAR  EBERBETRAN
BEAZBEERARSE S AJHEZER
BEERZAEBRITERNEAFRER
BEERETRT

Total
undiscounted Carrying
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ARERS
-FERE  WERRF REAE RAE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
R E— A= —HIFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° Foreign currency forward contracts are
measured using quoted forward exchange rates
and vyield curves derived from quoted interest
rates matching maturities of the contracts.

o The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding those described
above) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable, were
grouped into Levels 1 to 3.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 fair value
measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Derivative financial instruments are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Level 2.

MBEBERMBRBEZAFEEENT

e HEEHAHNZAFENREALNRE
o B BT ¥ 2 AR T R N PR AN R 2
BHRETHE -

s HMHMBEERWBAB(TEELEX
Pl ) 2 X FETIRE & &% A2 A
FRECRENTRERZEEREA
mEE

EERA/EA I MR A DA A A 8%
ZHBEERVBABZERAERERLQF
BEE -

MNEARFERRBRFTEZSRTARH
AFEZABREESIR—E=M -

F-BRAFEFENERATZ2HERZEE
HEAEREREMS 2RE (REAE)BE -
F_BAFEFENRE-CMBREZRE
S BEERBEANER (ER) KEE
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

B —F——Ff - A=1—HIFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

Segment information

The Group's operations are organised based on the
differences in products. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?"), for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is analysed based on the difference in
products. No operating segments identified by CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments are categorised into the manufacture and sale
of:

° Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard

° Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards and
carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported
below.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended 31st December, 2012

7. RakoBER &)

AT BREE R T2 EH B85 2 AEERSR

DEW R FEAE

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RHLFE

Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations  Consolidated
BRA REE% 2 BAG ok &E
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT TER ThR ThR ThER
REVENUE 6
External sales HIMEE 168,979 882,118 1,051,097 - 1,051,097
Inter-segment sales DHEHE 713,374 2,794 716,168 (716,168) -
Total @& 882,353 884,912 1,767,265 (716,168) 1,051,097
RESULT £
Segment profit DEFIE 12,255 21,547 33,802 - 33,802
Finance costs BB A (25,412)
Changes in fair value fTESRIA
of derivative AFEZED
financial instruments 18,444
Profit before taxation BRI A& 26,834
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 #E#%
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

WakosHER (&)

DEHER

B B R A (E)

BE-F —£+-A=+-ALEE

Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations Consolidated
R4 REBE% DEb s i ey
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FEL FEL THEL FAT FAT
REVENUE §:
External sales HIMEE 213,666 1,226,567 1,440,233 = 1,440,233
Inter-segment sales NEEEE 839,067 3,118 842,185 (842,185) =
Total B 1,062,733 1,229,685 2,282,418 (842,185) 1,440,233
RESULT E4
Segment profit DEFIE 11,854 55,191 67,045 - 67,045
Finance costs BB A (24,370)
Changes in fair value fTEemIE
of derivative AYEzE
financial instruments (5,815)
Profit before taxation 80 7 36,860

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the
reportable segment information are the same as the

Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of finance costs and changes
in fair value of derivative financial instruments. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resources allocation and performance assessment.
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HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERDEHBER &)

(continued)

Segment information (continued) 72 EER

Segment revenues and results (continued) DB R (E)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market DEFBEENLRBRRITMEHE -

rates.

No revenue from any single customer during the year RREFERN  HETARE -—ZBPRNFRZKZE
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group BERBBAANEBRZETEI0% °

for both years.

Other segment information Et 7 58 &H
For the year ended 31st December, 2012 BHE_T——F+-_A=1+—BItEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: HESHFEERIE SR
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
R RiEE%# et
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTHERT THERT THERT
Interest income B UA 2,002 922 2,924
Release of prepaid lease payments 0]+ 3 0 PR 4
on land use rights B EERE 355 261 616
Depreciation e 55,408 21,179 76,587
For the year ended 31st December, 2011 e T——F+-_A=+—HILEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: HELSIMNEEIE &%
Corrugated
Containerboard Packaging Total
IR RiFBE et
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAT FHT FHT
Interest income B A 222 861 1,083
Release of prepaid lease payments B0 (R
on land use rights EAHEERE 346 261 607
Depreciation heE 51,202 22,187 73,389
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BakoBER &)
(continued)
Segment information (continued) DEER (&)
Geographical information HEE K
The following table set out information about (i) the TR EBONAEBRERIMNTBOME D 2
Group's revenue from external customers by location of IRBEFPNHRNVAEBIREEMEMEEI D 2
delivery destination of the goods and (ii) the Group's non- ERFEEZER -

current assets by location of assets:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
IREF FERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET TER FHET
PRC H 1,051,097 1,440,233 1,416,749 1,370,520
Others H At - - 4,882 5,866

1,051,097 1,440,233 1,421,631 1,376,386

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE

The measure of the segment reporting of the Group HEH T EREAREEE RSB RERRTAHZ
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources AZAREEDPREFWEFATAEEREE -
allocation and performance assessment does not include At - TEZ2HDHEERBE -

any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets
and liabilities are presented.

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfug A
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Other income includes: Hi A :
Exchange gain, net PE 5 Wz 05 (B - 219
Gain on disposal of property, LEME  BE R
plant and equipment A 2 WS 109 =
Interest income from bank balances RITRE A B A 2,924 1,083
Scrap sales % Gh SH & 287 1,204
Service income AR 75 Mg A 7,531 8,334
Sundry income FEIHIA 705 4,955
Reimbursement of tax and other ERFIERE ML
charges (note 10) (fFzE10) - 9,080
11,556 24,875
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS Bt # B A
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFREMZRITEE
repayable within five years ZF B 25,412 24,370
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRERBEX
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Current tax: BVHAR: 18 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMNEH 870 1,644
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REI ISR 2,150 608
3,020 2,252
Underprovision in prior years BIFEREBETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMNEH - 3,750
Deferred tax (note 24) EERIE (MF5E24) 3,225 4,065
6,245 10,067

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

A portion of the Group's profits are earned by the Macau
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under the Macau
SAR’s Offshore Law. Pursuant to the Macau SAR's
Offshore Law, such portion of profits are exempted from
Macau complementary tax, which is currently at 12%
of the profits. Further, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, that portion of the Group's profit is not
at present subject to taxation in any other jurisdiction in
which the Group operates.

Under the law of the People's Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

EBNNERHDEMEAFEGHAEEHANEZ
16.5%&H & -

AEBE D MBI A ARBERERPISHITTHRE
B O R B AE MRS 2 R PT B B 22 B AT BREX - IR IR
RFVRRITTER R BE AR - RO M BHARS
B FRT (B AR B Z12% 80 < wtoh - &
REBEERR BAIAKEZIYMBEIRFEAR
REB K EE 2 EEMRDERER RBATIR -

REFEARKMBEEMETOE (EEMEHR
EDREEMGREERGD B —FFN\F—
A—BE PEMNBARZHER25% °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
B —F——Ff - A=1—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

One PRC subsidiary which is exempted from PRC EIT
for two years starting from the first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years
pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
was subject to PRC EIT rate of 12.5% for the years ended
31st December, 2011 and 31st December, 2012.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

10. FREHBAX (2

RETEBRZEMRAD - AEEET —H+E
MEAR S & EENFEEFTMEER R
REEEMSH  HR=FEHR0%PREEE
R - BE_FT——F+-_A=+t—RHAEK=F
——FFTA=t+—BIFE  ZMBRARARK
PEEEMMSHE125%HATIE -

FERBXHEGAZERERARHEAMNEZ
HERWD -

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT T
Profit before taxation AT F)E 26,834 36,860
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BREBNBHE16.5%
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) ZE——F :16.5%) st B2 HIE 4,428 6,082
Tax effect of income not taxable BARRBAZREE
for tax purpose (2,657) (2,023)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AIHIFEB = 2 TS £
for tax purpose 2,704 3,614
Utilisation of tax losses previously FREMAERZBIEERE
not recognised (806) (464)
Effect of different tax rate of el Y= RN e
PRC subsidiaries TRzZE 1,962 3,008
Effect of tax exemption granted to SR B AR R R
Macau subsidiaries MIBz 2 (676) (4,129)
Tax effect of undistributed earnings FEMNBRARARDIREF 2
of PRC subsidiaries (note 24) B2 (fsE24) 866 347
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBETR - 3,750
Others Hh 424 (118)
Tax charge for the year FEBETH 6,245 10,067

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

E——Ff —A=+—HIFFE

On 9th December, 2004, a tax audit was commenced
by the IRD on certain subsidiaries of the Company,
namely, Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory
Limited (“GMHF"), Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware
Factory Limited (“FKHF") and Hop Fung (Overseas)
Trading Limited (“HFO") (collectively referred to the
"Subsidiaries”), in respect of the years of assessment
1998/1999 to 2003/2004. On 26th January, 2005, 5th
January, 2006 and 2nd June, 2006, whilst these cases
were still under investigation, the IRD issued protective
assessments for the years of assessment 1998/1999,
1999/2000 and 2000/2001 to 2003/2004 respectively
to the above-mentioned subsidiaries in order not to
jeopardise the assessment powers of the IRD which will
be timebarred after 6 years of assessment. The taxes
demanded under the protective assessments amounted
to HK$71,835,527 in aggregate. The Group had lodged
objections with the IRD against all these assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of objections by the
Subsidiaries, tax reserve certificates of HK$480,000
and HK$1,400,000 in respect of the assessments for
GMHF and FKHF, pending the outcome of the tax audits
and the objections, were purchased in March 2005 and
March 2006 respectively. A banker's undertakings of
HK$9,369,022 were arranged by the Group and had
been accepted by the IRD as security for payment of
the mentioned tax. The remaining amounts of tax of
HK$60,586,505 demanded by the IRD have been held
over unconditionally.

RZZEZTEWNFF+_RANB BERRARAE
THBARAHELEEMMAERLAR ([AHE
2)) BEaEEmmaR2 R ([HE ﬁé%J)&
Hop Fung (Overseas) Trading L|m|ted(FHFOJ)
(ZBIZEMBRARADR—AANE /"~
FEZET=F /ST NFIHFTERAM
BEZ BABEEZHEETHE R-2ZTRF
—A-+R"B ZEEXRF—ARHEE-_ZE
NERNAZRH BBRA AR EMEBARZ
—NWANE/ " —NhhANhE - —hANE/ =EF
EEN_ZTEERF /T FEF_TT=F)/
“ETFAMEFEENREETIHRE U2
@ﬁﬁ‘i%‘ﬁﬁﬁm?ﬁ%%/_\iWﬁ@iZEﬁFL%ﬂ
RIFIERT T B K 2 BB % /571,835,527 7T ©
KElEEﬁPﬁﬁuxﬁnﬁﬂﬁfﬁi‘i%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

REZEMNBRAEXIREER SRR =ZZZTH
F= ﬂ&—??/\qz AR ALY EHEA
@ 7 FF % B8 B 480,000 7T & 1,400,000/ T f## £
H UEBEBERRREREZER - A5EE
Z BEIR 17 4 $£9,369,0228 7t - fEA T Lt F
RZEH MEBEREEXZER HERME
Sk 2 B #4711860,586,505/8 7T B JE EAZ I E 4 -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE_F——F+_A=1—HIFE

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
Company reached an agreement with the IRD on the
tax filing basis of GMHF, FKHF and HFO for the years
of assessment 1998/1999 to 2003/2004. Under this
settlement basis, the Group was obliged to pay the total
amount of HK$19,841,668 (including tax undercharged
of HK$12,706,955, penalty of HK$1,600,000 and interest
of HK$5,534,713) for the settlement of the tax case
up to the year of assessment 2003/04. Additional tax
provision of HK$2,458,309 and the related interests and
penalty of HK$7,134,713 (included in “other expenses”)
were recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December, 2011. As at 31st December, 2011, the related
interests and penalty payable amounted to approximately
HK$5,101,000 was included in “trade, bills and other
payables”.

Based on the Deed of Indemnity entered into between
the Company and the then shareholders of the companies
(which held 57.26% of the Company's shares in total
as at 31st December, 2011) before the listing of the
Company’'s shares on the Stock Exchange in the
year 2003, the management estimated an amount of
approximately HK$9,080,000 to be reimbursed from
these shareholders. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, this amount to be reimbursed under the Deed
of Indemnity is not contributions from equity participants
as it is contractually payable by the covenantors based on
the terms set out in the Deed of Indemnity. Such amount
was recognised as other income for the year ended
31st December, 2011 and included in “trade and other
receivables” as at 31st December, 2011 in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy for provision and
reimbursements of expenditures. The amount has been
fully settled during the year ended 31st December, 2012.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. XATEEARBLEERE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHERT FH&T
Profit for the year, attributable to RNNRER ARG FEFE
owners of the Company, has been RT3 &IE
arrived at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration % ST B & 1,600 1,627
Allowance for inventories GFERE GTATHERSN] R
(included in “cost of sales” [ERARIZ 2 FERAE]D)
and “cost of inventories
recognised as expenses”) 151 64
Cost of inventories recognised BRAEASZGFE
as expenses BN 880,542 1,224,150
Depreciation of property, M- WBEMREEZ
plant and equipment e
—included in “cost of sales” — T ATSHER A 69,872 66,320
—included in “other expenses” —FATEMAS 6,715 7,069
76,587 73,389
Release of prepaid lease payments BB £ Hb{F R TEAS
on land use rights HERE 616 607
Exchange losses, net [ENE R - F58 243 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERXE
plant and equipment B8 - 555
Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 & U UE 2 B E B 18
(included in “other expenses”) (Gt A THEMFAZ] ) 185 256
Operating lease rental for warehouse EERBAELEHERS
and office premises 498 439
Staff costs BTIA
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) BE=me (M:x12) 7,065 8,234
Other staff HMET
— salaries and other allowances — ¥ & RE MR 64,172 63,978
— retirement benefit scheme — R ORE FIET Bl 5k
contributions 4,426 4,865
— share-based payments — B HEHzEH 80 306
75,743 77,383
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12 EERFTETHRAEHMERESHFM
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
Directors 5=

Other emoluments

HitM &
Retirement

Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2012
Fees benefits Bonus contributions payments Total

FeR RIKEA DN§)
e Hi R A FEMHR  XfAzxd Mewm
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TER Tl TER TER FET TER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok TRELE - 2,004 - 14 35 2,053
Mr. Hui Sum Ping TRFEE - 2,004 - 14 39 2,057
Mr. Hui Sum Tai THRREE - 1,763 - 14 39 1,816
Ms. Hui Yuen Li AL - 706 - 14 9 729
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric  BRA %A 136 - - - 1 137
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan ERHEE 136 - - - - 136
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BREEE 136 - - - 1 137
408 6,477 - 56 124 7,065

Other emoluments

Hihie
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2011
Fees benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total
Hek RIKEH AR 1R
e Hfto 1 F T4 SRS XMz Wewm

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TET TET TET

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok TREEAE - 1,329 500 12 134 1,975
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FRFEE = 1,329 500 12 149 1,990
Mr. Hui Sum Tai ARERE - 1,166 500 12 149 1,827
Mr. Wong Wing Por (note) T &8 %5 4 (Fi &%) - 1,185 - 12 149 1,346
Ms. Hui Yuen Li AL L - 676 - 12 34 722
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric  #WRELE 122 - - - 4 126
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan EEHLAE 122 - = = = 122
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BHRLE 122 - - - 4 126

366 5,685 1,500 60 623 8,234
Note: Mr. Wong Wing Por resigned as an executive director with iz : FERBEELEEBEHTESHRE H=2F——

effect from 30th December, 2011. F+-A=Zt+HBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERFETHRAEMEREEFHFMHN 2

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors (continued) EEE)

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is also the chief executive of the FRREENMBARAEBITHRAE - R EXFT
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include FEZ2HeEEEETEIETRASRERE
those for services rendered by him as the chief executive. EAaEZ2MME -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group TR AEEBELSMETMAHNES FHEESIES
to these directors as an inducement to join or upon joining HBEEMASIEAEMAKRER 7 KB & EA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office and no EHBmES TEESERETMAME -

director had waived any emoluments.

Employees ==

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the rEEBLIUGEHFMALH  Hfmhg (ZF
Group, four (2011: five) were directors of the Company ——F AN AXRRRES  BEZFHE R
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of Ex#EHy - BE_ZTE——F+_A=+—BItHF
the remaining individual for the year ended 31 December E &% T—fALZME A863,000%8 T B
2012 amounted to HK$863,000, representing salaries and MERAEBIRERBAZEZHE N EMEF
other benefits of HK$489,000, bonus of HK$370,000 and 489,000 7T * T£41370,0007%8 7T & iR K18 F 51 &
retirement benefits scheme contributions of HK$4,000, #3%4,0007% 7T °

for his/her service rendered to the Group.

Bonuses to directors and employees were determined EEREEZHANZERE_ZE—=—F+=A
based on the financial performance of the Group for the =t-—-BR-ZE——F+_A=F+—HIEFER
years ended 31st December, 2012 and 31st December, EEBVMBRIAET -
2011.
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET TEIT
Final dividend paid in respect of BERZZE—TFREARE
2010 of 3.4 HK cents per share FH3.451 - 16,419
The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final EElESEENBEE2E_E2——F+—-_BA=+—H
dividend for the two years ended 31st December, 2012 tR—_E——&+-_A=+—HBItMAEEZx
and 31st December, 2011. HARG & o
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 #E#%

93



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BIRE R

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

RRABHEBEANCBESREAREGRNTIRAT

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on BT E
the following data:
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHIT
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purposes of basic FEERERAREERAT
and diluted earnings per share &7 20,589 26,793
2012 2011
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary s EESRERZAF
shares for the purpose of basic T AR AN T 5 2
earnings per share 618,103,136 507,070,200
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary E’Eﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂgﬁ%ﬁZf fE#E
shares in respect of share options TEkRk e - 1,139,979
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&REERF 2
shares for the purpose of diluted LA IR T
earnings per share 618,103,136 508,210,179
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HEHE-—_FT——FE+-_F=+—H )}g* E— —

purpose of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31st December, 2011 and 31st December, 2012 has been
adjusted retrospectively for the bonus element of the
rights issue completed on 10th July, 2012.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31st December, 2012 does not assume the
exercise of the Company's outstanding share options
as the exercise price of those options is higher than the
average market price for the year.
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Ft_A=T-BULFESKRELRRF

Hx

MEFHBERR-_FT——FLATH nE)ZZT,\

Bz ST BB D B R -

HRARBHARTEZBEREZTEES R

EFOmE AUdE#E_FT——F+=
ST BLEFEZEREERNE  YERR

ERBAEETE -

CEF
H

%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ - BEKRE

Furniture, Plant,
Factory Leasehold fixtures machinery
premises land and Leasehold and office and Motor  Construction
in the PRC buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH HENE  BARE HE BB
TERE ¢ =2 $6  RELERA k& it kBIR it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS" 000
TR Tin TEn Tén Tin TEn Tin Tén
COST s
At 1st January, 2011 “5--%-A-H 474,939 4519 42932 14,079 1,040,211 11,837 - 1,688,517
Exchange adustments B} 5% 19,610 69 1,083 280 39570 184 = 60,766
Additions Y - - 1,341 534 117,038 1,140 - 120,083
Disposals il = = (35) (97) (1952) (1521) = (3,605)
At 31st December, 2011 —E——&+-fA=+-H 494,549 4,588 45,291 14,79% 1,194,867 11,640 - 1,765,731
Exchange adjustments  EX % 10,196 % 573 163 23,142 % - 34,198
Additions £ - - 1,750 1,098 54,480 1,406 35,467 94,200
Disposals & - - (191 (42 7 (726) - (860)
At 315t December, 2012 ~5-—#+-f=1-H 504,745 4,624 47,5% 16,005 1,272,416 12417 35,467 1,893,269
DEPRECIATION il ]
At 1t Janvary, 2011 ZF-—5-F-H 71479 1,039 33,569 7170 211,614 8,966 - 333,837
Exchange adustments B 5% 2542 13 728 90 4413 126 = 7912
Provided for the year ~ EFE[E 19,566 183 332 1277 47815 1,204 S 73,389
Eliminated on disposals  (F EF ¥4 - - (35) (55) (736) (1,481) - (2,307)
At 31st December, 2011 —E——&+-fA=+-H 93,587 1,235 37,586 8,482 263,106 8,835 - 412,831
Exchange adjustments  EX % 1833 9 451 6 3423 80 - 5,861
Provided for the year A& 19,986 184 3129 1,294 50,948 1,046 = 76,587
Eliminated on disposals  Hi£B 5 - - ] 39) (60) (317) - (425)
At31st December, 2012 —F-—£+-A=+-A 115,406 1428 4,157 9,802 317,417 9,644 - 494,854
CARRYING VALUES ~ KEE
At 31t December, 2012 —E--F+-f=1-8 389,339 3,19 6,438 6,203 954,999 2713 35,467 1398415
At 31st December, 2011 —E——&+-fA=+-H 400,962 3,353 7,105 6,314 931,761 2,805 - 1,352,900
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

4% or remaining lease term of
the land element, if shorter
4% or remaining lease term of
the land element, if shorter

Factory premises in the PRC

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10%
Plant, machinery and equipment 3',% - 33'/,%

Motor vehicles 20%

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

15. % - MERRE &)

¥z BERRFEERE (EZITRERIN KE
BORIRA T FRITE

RE#E 4% EH 2 T
(ABEEBE)

MELHRET 4% EH 2 T
(ABEEAE)

HEMELE 20%
B KERBOERE 10%
B - e R R 3',% - 33'/,%
B 20%
2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FHxT FHEIT

The carrying amount of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings shown
above comprises:

Situated in Hong Kong under

medium-term lease isFoESTE)
Situated in Macau under AL AR PP 12 B2 A AR
medium-term lease HEEH

The carrying amount of the above-mentioned factory
premises in the PRC does not include any land element
which is presented as “prepaid lease payments on land
use rights"” separately.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE 16. T FRAERASEERE
RIGHTS

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
The Group's prepaid lease payments AN [E 11 A& B (S
on land use rights comprise: HEFIEBLRE :
Land use rights in the PRC L FA PR B 2 1 {5 AR A
Medium-term lease AR 4V 23,837 24,099
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMEDH :
Non-current asset FERBEE 23,216 23,486
Current asset mBEE 621 613
23,837 24,099
Included in the Group's prepaid lease payments on AREBZ T HFAERAMNBERET B F
land use rights is HK$1,811,000 (2011: HK$1,873,000) 1,811,000 7T (& — — £ : 1,873,000 7T) 2
prepayments under processing arrangement which MTEHEENR AT ERAERLEE T2
represent the prepaid amount under an operating lease for t4%E o
land use rights.
17. INVENTORIES 17. 51
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHT
Raw materials R 119,253 108,915
Work in progress R 1,082 857
Finished goods BURK Gh 23,302 78,516
143,637 188,288
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. 8 5 % H #b fE W 2% 18
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 REWGKRIE 160,456 169,958
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIREAE (1,276) (1,068)
159,180 168,890
Other receivables (note) H At U 508 (B RE) 16,036 24,446
Total trade and other receivables 2 5 I H fth fE U FIE 4B 58 175,216 193,336
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

Note: As at 31st December, 2011, included in other receivables
was reimbursement of tax and other charges of
approximately HK$9,080,000, details of which are set out
in note 10. The amount was fully settled during the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group
received a notification from the PRC local government
for the return of a piece of land for its redevelopment
purposes. The Group paid RMB12,000,000 in prior years to
acquire that piece of land and the amount was previously
included in the “prepaid lease payments on land use
rights”. The Group did not receive the formal legal title
of that piece of land and the carrying amount of that
piece of land as at 31st December, 2011 amounted to
HK$14,670,000. Upon receipt of the notification, the Group
reclassified the amount of HK$14,670,000 from “prepaid
lease payments on land use rights” to “other receivables”.
As at 31st December, 2011, the Group is still in the
process of negotiating with the PRC local government for
an amount of compensation.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Higher
People's Court of Guangdong Province ordered the PRC
local government to compensate the Group for an amount
of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,000,000) and the
related interests.

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 150
days to its trade customers which may be extended to
selected trade customers depending on their trade volume
and history of settlement with the Group. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

Within 30 days 30H A

31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days H@90H
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Mg R=F——#+-A=+-A0  RemKRES
51804 B4R % 2 4 B9 X 409,080,007 7T - 515
K0 EMAACRRE-F——&+=
A=+—RILFEEBELN -

HE-_Z——F+_A=+—HIFE X&£E
BEEPEMBIRF BN RE— Bt Tt
FHRFEgEEMAZ AEERBAEFER
S+ AR #12,000,0007T 8 A GZIE 1 - H R
BERBAIATLEREEMNBAERE]IR -
ANEFBYERESRIBR I ERRTERE R =
T——F+-A=+—0 ZBRIHZEEES
14,670,000 7T - AEBERKHFBMEE HH @
BRTEI{H14,670,0008 Tl [ L AREENEE
REIEFPEAHMENRFKE] RZT——
FH+-—A=+—H8 AEEEEFHHBEFD
HEBEESE-

HE—_T——H+_-_A=+—BLFE ERZE
BRARERBSPEN S RFAERANE BE
8 AR %12,000,0007T (48 % #215,000,0007% 7T )
RABRAFIE ©

REEGETESEFSEI0EEEH - Bl AR
BREESEFPEAEE 2 EHEBENKE
B TAERZEESR - THARBERRER
HRAMNGRREBREERMES 28 5 B EKE
ZARER DA

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FEx THET
147,878 148,701
6,411 10,392
1,991 SI351
2,900 6,440
159,180 168,890



18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external litigation search to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on a
customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed monthly. Trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$40,764,000 (2011: HK$34,128,000) which were past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Such amount relates to a
number of independent customers that have good trade
and payment records with the Group. There has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the balances are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 57 days (2011: 51 days) based on invoice dates.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

18. ES R EMEWRIE &)

EEMEAFETA  AEESRAINFFRAR
R MEEREERPZEREARRABREP
REEERE BEZEERBLINESEAE
Higar - BEARBEINKRE 2 B 5 YRR 8T
Y |ERNREHECEFAR -

AEBzESRERZBEBRTRIEERELRE
/40,764,000 T2 EWHIE (ZF — —F :
34,128,000 L) ' Z SR EREBEHRBE @A -
MASEETELREREETESG SHEHE
EAEERBRUEGENARLHEZZEBIE
FEH ZERPZEEEZTESEANE B
AEBREMHAIKE R BES - NEBEWEZ
ERBMEBEEEMAKER REZZBEH %5
FEWEIEM R A57H (ZE——% :51H) ©

EAMERREZE S ERTIRZERER

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FHET FHIT

Overdue by 1 to 30 days BmE1Z=30H 40,764 34,128
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts AERBE22T

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FHET FHIT

Balance at beginning of the year FHER 1,068 784

Exchange adjustments ME 5, 8 23 28

Impairment losses recognised on B RWHIEAEZ
trade receivables B R EEE 185 256
Balance at end of the year FRES 1,276 1,068

Impairment losses were recognised based on the
Group's historical experience, aged analysis and internal
assessment of the recoverability of the debt. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BREBEDREASEHERZBERLR KK
2T e W [ HE & By P B0 S A T RERR o AR I AR
PR A T E R e
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

19. fTAEE2®MIHE

2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE af&
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FH&T FHET
Foreign exchange forward  SMEZEHIAS %)
contracts 1,489 1,186 728 13,432

These foreign exchange forward contracts are not
accounted for under hedge accounting.

ZEIEERENL RZE PG EARGRE -

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Net cash inflow from settlement of FRATTAESRT A
derivative financial instruments HEZFHRSRA
during the year 5,437 6,004

At 31st December, 2012, the Group had outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts that are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The Group
has an obligation, in accordance with the terms of the
respective contracts, to buy or sell USD monthly until
maturity. The instruments are to be settled on a net basis.
The major terms of these outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts are as follow:

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

BE_F &+ A=1HAUFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at

31st December, 2012

Total monthly

Remaining total

19. fTEEMIT R (&)

(i) R=ZFB-—Z-FF+ZA=+—-HBZNEE

HEH

notional amount notional amount Contract rate Maturity
BRERBESHE BTERZESHE EHER [ B 1B
Buy US$2,000,000 (note (a)) US$2,000,000 HK$7.739/US$1 Within 1 year
E A2,000,0003 7T (fit 7 (a) 2,000,000 7T 77398/ 1%L TR

Buy US$2,000,000 (note (b)) US$28,000,000 HK$7.74/US$1 Within 2 years
& A2,000,0003% 7T (P 5 (b)) 28,000,000 7 77487 /1% 7T 26

Buy US$2,000,000 (note (c)) US$16,000,000 HK$7.738/US$1 Within 1 year
B A2,000,000% 7T (Fi#E(c)) 16,000,000 7T 17388/ 15T 1E R

Sell US$2,000,000 (note(d)) US$10,000,000 RMB6.58/US$1 to RMB6.68/US$1 Within 1 year
#1£2,000,000% 7t (FiH(d) 10,000,000% 7T ARE6 58T 1ETEARE668T, /12T 15R

Sell US$4,000,000 (note (e)) US$56,000,000 RMB5.65/US$1 to RMB6.45/US$1 Within 2 years
& H14,000,000% 7T (Kt 5 (e)) 56,000,0003 7T AREB 65T 1ETEARE646T/1ET  26ER

Sell US$2,000,000 (notelf)) US$18,000,000 RMB6.5/US$1 Within 1 year
& 12,000,000% 7t (B () 18,000,000% 75 ARB6.5TL,/ 1% 1E R

Sell US$1,000,000 (note (g)) US$21,000,000 RMB6.528/US$1 Within 2 years
& H1,000,000% 7 (P 7% (9)) 21,000,000 7T AR®6.5287T /1E7T 2R
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
R E——Ff = A=1—HIFFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2012 (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is at or higher than the contract
rate), the Group’s potential gain is limited to an agreed
amount as stipulated in the foreign exchange forward
contract. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is lower than the contract rate), the
Group has to buy the agreed notional amount of USD
at the contract rate with HKD.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, the Group has to buy the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is higher than the contract rate),
the Group's potential gains are limited to the agreed
amounts as stipulated in the foreign exchange forward
contract. However, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves unfavourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the contract
rate), the Group has to buy the agreed notional amount
of USD at the contract rate with HKD.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed notional
amount of USD at the contract rate. However, when
market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable
to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the
contract rate with RMB.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

19. TTEEM I A %)

(i) RZFB-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—-HZNHEE
HEn &)

B & -

(a) RELAIIEERHEDH AEBEBUARES
WEXZABAZIREHEL REAK
B - BT, R IBE XA A KB R
(EREL / ETEXERXERALE
) RIAREEZEERGANIERREL
FrigE 2 A ESRERR - AW - BT =
T 5 E RN R e (BN 38T, %
TERERAGOER)  AIAEEFUET
BANEXBEARELRESBIET -

(o) MRELASEERMEL  AEBEHUETE
WEXRZABAZIREHEL REAR
B ARESERANEXBEARTEEZS
BZETe

() REFLMINERBAELY AEBBUEES
MEZZABAXTRELEL -REBAK
B BT RIS E RN AR B
(BngfEr / ErEXRSRANESX) - 8l
AEBEZBERBUAIMNEERREHMEEZ
BECEAR - AW BT ELHIHE
EAFAEHRS (NERHET  ETEXRS
REERAHER) - AIAEE K AETE
BHERBEABERZEEIET

(d) RELAIIEZHEH AKERERMER
—RIRBEREEAZARNAEEEZE
B BHETRBEAAREZITNT - K&
BEEABEANEXZABREITIREAA
R -MNEBRBER MARE E1TH%
EEFFAEE (NEHARYE ETEX
ERHEREHER) AAKEGZAHN
EXEHBRETERESRZIET - AW A
R,/ EZrumigBERTFIAEBEE (BNEH
ARME /ETEERBRAKNER) AIAE
BgAARBRZANEXEFRELETES
SREZETT



FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
EF——F A=t AIFE

Notes: (continued)

(e)

(9)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the
Group entered into a 24-month target redemption
forward contract with knock-out feature. The knock-
out event shall occur if the calculation agent determine
that the market RMB/US$ exchange rate fall within a
range as stipulated in the foreign forward exchange
contract for twelve times, the remaining contract shall
terminate and be deemed cancelled.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed notional
amount of USD at the contract rate. However, when
market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable
to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the
contract rate with RMB.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rates on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group’s potential gains are limited
to the agreed amounts as stipulated in the foreign
exchange forward contracts. However, when market
RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the
Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is higher than
the contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed
notional amount of USD at the contract rate with RMB.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contract,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rates on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group
(i.,e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is lower than the
contract rate), the Group's potential gains are limited
to the agreed amounts as stipulated in the foreign
exchange forward contract. However, when market
RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the
Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
the agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate
with RMB.

BfEE : (48)

(e)

REBEEZEZZE——ZF+A=+—HLEFE
R AEBEEE—H_-_tTHEAZRNBEZ
AIERERHAN(EEBRAREE) -5
REBEBHETIRAERIBREARE ET
TISEREZI1I2N TR EINERPE N
EZ%E%%EY%Té%%%%m&Wﬁ
AEUH ©

RiIgLRINERBEH  AEBRERMER
—RIBRBEREEAZAXNAEEEZE
B BHETRBEAAREZATNT - K&
BRAZEEANERIZABRBRETREAA
R -NERAKER  MARKE ETH5
ERMFAEE (EPARE, EITEX
ERHEREGHER)  AAKEGZAH
EXTBHRELBSBEZIERT - AT WA
R¥E /0T 5 E = AR A K B (B1E 8
AR/ ETRESRAHNER)  AIAE
BgAARBZANEXEFELETE R
SHEZET

Rz LMNERBAHN  RAEBRAEMER
—FIRBEAAKAZAXBLABEEZE
o BHEXTREAARK ZFINT - K&
BEABEANERIZABHIIREAA
RE -RNEBALER MAR®B E1H5
EEFFAEE (AEHARYE ETEX
ERFENAGNER)  AIAEEHZBEK
mANERRACOAIEECLETESREBMR -
A i AR XIS E R SR AR E
B (EPARE ETERSRANE
) AIREEBUARBRANERT L
BEBESBIETT e

BRI ERIMNEERBMEH  AEBRBEEMEE
—FIRBEREEAZAXNREEEZE
B BHETRBEAAREZANT - K&
BMHUREEANERIZABRBBETREAA
RE -REALER MARK E1miH
ExFIFAEE(NERARE ETEX
EREHER) - BIAREEZ EE R A5
ERHANMEEZETESERMR - A -
i N B H55 7T i 455 B o< 71 F| s % (@ A (D
ERARE FETEXSRASNEHE
=) AIAREEHAARBRANERSH
BELRBELBEIET °
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+-H=+—HIFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(ii)

Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2011

Total monthly

Remaining total

19. fTEEM T A (&)

(i)

R-ZB-——F+-A=+t—-HZHIEE
HEK

m

notional amount notional amount Contract rate Maturity
BRERESHE BTERBESLHE ERE=E JE W 5

Buy US$8,000,000 (note (a)) US$100,000,000 HK$7.738/US$1 to HK$7.74/US$1 Within 2 years

E A8,000,000% 7t (M3 (a) 100,000,000 7T 1I38BTNETETLIAET 1% 26/

Buy US$6,000,000 (note (b)) US$76,000,000 HK$7.731/US$1 to HK$7.738/US$1 Within 2 years

E 6,000,000 7t (K (b)) 76,000,000 7T 1INERT/1 ELETIBEL1ER 26

Sell US$13,000,000 (note (c)) US$190,000,000 RMB6.2/US$1 to RMB6.91/US$1 Within 2 years

& 11113,000,0003% 7t (FizE(c) 190,000,000 7& ARB62L/MNETEARKEN T 1ET  26A

Notes: MisE -

(a)  Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts, (a) RELMINERPELY  NEEBEUETS

the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/US$
exchange rate is at or higher than the contract rate),
the Group has to buy the agreed notional amount of
USD at the contract rate. However, when market HK$/
US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the Group
(i.,e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to buy 2 times of the
agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate
with HKD.

Several contracts with total monthly notional amount
of US$6,000,000 contain additional feature which limit
the Group's potential gains. At the settlement date,
if the spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is higher than a
stipulated cap rate, the Group will not have to buy the
contractual notional at the contract rate.

During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
Group entered into a 24-month target redemption
forward contract with knock-out feature. The knock-
out event shall occur if the calculation agent determine
that the market RMB/US$ exchange rate fall within a
range as stipulated in the foreign forward exchange
contract for twelve times, the remaining contracts
shall terminate and be deemed cancelled.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

WEXRZABAXZTRELBT REAK
B - BT E T IS IE £ M I AR E R
(ERELT  ETEXERXBRALE
R) AEEREZANEXREAZCEES
BZETT - A BT/ ELTBEERT
FAEBER (NEBMEL ETEXERE
WER) - AIREEHABTRAHERSE
BEABRTERBELBEIET -

FAZFELSFEEG,000000ETZ2ETA
HWREBRHNAEEBERFNZIEE - R4E
BH WMESSL/ ETERERET LR
ERE NEBEETERANEREASGYN
BESE-

RBE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RHItEE
R AEEERHFEE—MH_+THEAR R EIZ
AERRBEHN (EEMRRIISE) - 1#
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MISEEREZRI2NTREINERAE LN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(ii) Foreign exchange forward contracts as at
31st December, 2011 (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group will receive USD and deliver HKD at
stipulated contract rate on a monthly basis. At each
monthly settlement, when market HK$/US$ exchange
rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e. spot HK$/
US$ exchange rate is higher than the contract rate),
the Group has to buy the agreed notional amount of
USD at the contract rate. However, when market HK$/
US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable to the Group
(i.e. spot HK$/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than
the contract rate), the Group has to buy 2 times of the
agreed notional amount of USD at the contract rate
with HKD.

Under the above foreign exchange forward contracts,
the Group is a party that has an obligation to deliver
USD and receive RMB at a series of predetermined
prices, based on the price calculated with a pre-
specified formula. The Group will deliver USD and
receive RMB at stipulated contract rate on a monthly
basis. At each monthly settlement, when market RMB/
US$ exchange rate moves favourable to the Group (i.e.
spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is at or lower than the
contract rate), the Group has to sell the agreed notional
amount of USD at the contract rate. However, when
market RMB/US$ exchange rate moves unfavourable
to the Group (i.e. spot RMB/US$ exchange rate is
higher than the contract rate), the Group has to sell
2 times of the agreed notional amount of USD at the
contract rate with RMB.

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank balances at prevailing market rates from 0.01%
to 3.50% (2011: 0.01% to 1.31%).

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank
balances, approximately HK$665,000 (2011: HK$207,000),
HK$2,472,000 (2011: HK$5,280,000) and HK$3,227,000
(2011: HK$1,953,000) denominated in RMB, USD and HKD
respectively are the currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.

19. fTAE €M T A (%)

(ii) R=ZFB——F+ZA=Z+—-BZNHEE

HManE)
MisE : (4F)

(o) RELAIIEZHELDL AEEBUARESR
HWEXRZABAZTRELBT REALE
B0 BT E T IS IE £ M I AR E R
(gfMEr  ETEXSNANESR) - 8
AEEERANEXTEABERREELE
T AT - MBI ELTISEXRTRIARE
e (NEHELT ETEXERHERE
WER) A REEGABTRANERSE
EEABELHESBZET -

(c) MRELMIINERMEHN AEBERAETR
—RIRBEREEAZAXNTAEEEZE
B BHETREAAREZANS - R&E
BERAZEARNEXRZABHETIREAA
R -NEBRABER  MARKE E1THE
EXFFAEE(NERARYE ETEX
ERHERGUEE)  AXAKESEEH
EXELRTETRBLBIET - AW WA
R/ ExmisEETFAEER (B H
ARYE/ETEXFRANESR)  AIXE
BEgUARBZANEXEZELZ TR
GBI

20. RITHEBEES

BITHEHBERREBEASEREZRERBITT
BREANF0.01%E3.50% (ZF——4%F :0.01%
F1.31%) ZRITHE -

AEENEBEEERE 2R U BEEA
R EXRABLINBEZRITEHZETRED R
49 /665,000 7L (ZZF ——4 : 207,000 L)
2,472,0008 7T (=& — — 4 : 5,280,000 7t.) &
3,227,000/t (=& ——4 : 1,953,000/ 7T) °
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. 55  EBREMENSRE
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills THRRBERARERNBEZAHMEIN 2EH K
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end ERENRIBZERERS N :

of the reporting period:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$" 000
FHERT FH&T
Current RN A 129,371 118,775
Overdue 1 to 30 days #H1230H 12,705 10,287
Overdue 31 to 60 days #HI312=60H 1,312 520
Overdue for more than 60 days BHIGOH A £ 2,269 826
145,657 130,408
Payables for the acquisition of BEME WEREE
property, plant and equipment 2 PRI RIA 7,148 5,734
Other payables and accrued charges H A RERES W 68,534 72,540
Interests and penalty payable (note 10) &S &8 K £1 7% (M 7E10) - 5,101
221,339 213,783
The average credit period on purchases of goods is BEEYWZFHEEH AR (ZZE——F : 38
60 days (2011: 38 days). The Group has financial risk B) AREBTBEMGERERBRE AR
management policies in place to ensure that all payables EREMREBHECFEHRANEE -

are within the credit time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—T——F+—FH=+—HIFE

22. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 22. BEBRTEE
Unsecured bank borrowings comprise: ERFIRITEERLE
2012 2011
Effective interest rate HK$'000 HK$'000
BRA=E FHER TAT
Bank loans RITEE 0.751% - 7.761% 510,024 520,640
(2011: 0.477% - 7.076%)
Other bank borrowings HBTER 1.667% - 2.568% 150,778 174,503
(2011: 1.561% - 2.681%)
Trust receipt loans ERYIBEER 1.667% - 2.568% 1,801 73,959
(2011: 1.550% - 2.546%)
662,603 769,102
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHET FAET
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEEREE"
Within one year —F A 282,364 373,752
More than one year, but not —F A FERBEMRF
exceeding two years 319,091 83,792
More than two years, but not MEN EENBBERF
exceeding five years 30,463 245,636
631,918 703,180
Carrying amount of bank loans BENEREREZEKRRZ
that contain a repayment on RITEEZREE
demand clause
- repayable within one year —-R—FANEE 30,685 45,237
- repayable after one year —R—FE&EER
(shown under current liabilities) (FIRRREEE) - 20,685
662,603 769,102
Less: Amount due within one year B RIREBEY R
shown under current liabilities —FANEHERE (313,049) (439,674)
Amounts due after one year shown RIERBEES R 2
as non-current liabilities —FREHERE 349,554 329,428
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * HES BB EBESENE R ETHEEEZHAE
set out in the loan agreements. HAEETE o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
B —F——Ff - A=1—HIFE

As at 31st December, 2012, the unsecured bank
borrowings carried interest at floating rates, thus exposing
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest
rates were linked to HIBOR, LIBOR, prevailing interest
rates offered by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC"),
plus a margin, and prime minus a margin.

As at 31st December, 2011, the unsecured bank
borrowings carried interest at floating rates, except for an
amount of HK$40,000,000 which carried interest at fixed
rate. The interest rates were linked to HIBOR, LIBOR
and prevailing interest rates offered by the PBOC, plus a
margin.

Included in the carrying amount of the Group’s unsecured
bank borrowings, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$149,870,000 (2011: HK$77,256,000) were denominated
in HKD that are denominated in the currency other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entity.

Ordinary shares of SREEI10B T
HK$0.10 each eyl
Authorised: ETERA :
At the beginning and REN R FK
the end of the year
Issued and fully paid: BEAIRMERE :
At the beginning of REA
the year
Rights issue it A%
At end of year RELR

On 10th July, 2012, the Company completed the rights
issue by issuing 241,462,000 rights shares on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares,
at a subscription price of HK$0.18 per rights share
(“Rights Issue”). The cash proceeds of approximately
HK$43,463,000, before shares issue expenses of
HK$1,404,000, are used as general working capital of
the Group. These shares rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in issue in all aspects.

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

Number of shares

241,462,000

R-ZE——H+-_A=+—8B BERRTEE
BEBHNEFE A AKEAAZERSRERN
ZRk - BRANEEFBRTRERS  RAR
TRIZERE - FEARRT (AT A zHTT
MEEEERZBENTFGEHE

RZE——F+-A=+—HBB K—%54¢58A4
40,000,000 7c 2 E BR{TIEEN - EIKIFIRTT
BEERIHF KRB - BN REFTERITRZE
FE - BBIBITRERERATAMZIRITHE
MmERETHE -

RAREEHEEFRTEEZ2ETEES O
149,870,000/ 7T (ZZ——4F : 77,256,000 7T )
ZHITEENESEEERE Y NEEEB U Z
EHETIIE -

Share capital

ROHE R
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
TER TR
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
482,924,000 482,924,000 48,292 48,292
= 24,147 =
724,386,000 482,924,000 72,439 48,292

R—ZZE—=F+tA+HB ARQRAIEBET
241,462,000 I Z R M A TR HR - BEA T
MR AR D AR —RERRD  RBEARE
A& 4 A% B 190. 1878 7T ([ A% 1) - FTS IR & B4
43,463,0007% 7T (AR R 317 AR 19 521,404,000
BIL) DAEAEBZ —REEES - %ZERMH
RATBFEAEERESEERTRMNEZS RASE

3z
ZS o
g



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
R E— A= —HIFE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEVNGEUERARAERMS B TELEHRBEEE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets NEBERCHEE U TNAREBERZELEHRE
and liabilities have been offset. The followings are the BEEE)RARABREEENINEREEE 2 &
deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group ) -

and movements thereon during the current and prior

reporting years:

Undistributed

Accelerated earnings
tax of PRC  Write-down

depreciation  subsidiaries of inventories Total

R R

mE DEZ
BIEANE RO REF FEMHA Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
TET THER TERT THERT
At 1st January, 2011 RZE——%—H—H 21,718 5,360 (9) 27,069
Charge (credit) to profit or loss Bz NE (FHA) 3,741 347 (23) 4,065
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=A=+—H 25,459 5,707 (32) 31,134
Charge to profit or loss Bz MR 2,359 866 = 3,225
At 31st December, 2012 RZE-——F+=-A=+—H 27,818 6,673 (32) 34,359

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had unused tax losses

RIB——F+ZA=+—B FEETTHNIE

of HK$4,884,000 available to offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of
such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The losses has been fully utilised during the year
ended 31st December, 2012.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

$HABAE 2 REARIEEER4,884,0008 T °
HRERBFRRFEBSE MU ERZERIE
EFIERRALECHEEE BHEBBEEREBEEZ
——F+ A=+ ALFEEZEIAH -

REBHBECERBHOE - BHARTDE G BB L
AE-_TEN\F-HA-BEMRBRZAENEIK
Z I B o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4th
September, 2003 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group. The Scheme will expire on 3rd
September, 2013.

Under the Scheme, the Board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including executive or non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), of the Company,
its subsidiaries, or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity, and any consultants, advisers,
managers, officers or entities that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 36,000,000 shares, being 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date
on which the shares of the Company are listed on the
Stock Exchange, which can be refreshed according to
the Scheme. The number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised at any time under the Scheme shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
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The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates would result in the shares in the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and with a value (based
on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the
offer date of each offer) in excess of HK$5,000,000, such
grant of options must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the directors to the
grantee and in the absence of such determination, from
the date of acceptance of an offer of the grant of such
option to the earlier of the date on which such option
lapses and ten years from the date of offer of that option.
A consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
the nominal value of the share; the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer; and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

REARRNARRBIRZTEI B LHE - mERE
AATRER B ZERESRZBROHEE @ REM
TZEAHE I BB BARARREMEREE
BITRMBZ1% WA —BEZRE - B IEH
TEENIMARESEBZ2HBEATRDTAER
o SEHREARTRZALZAEBREETEMD
REERLAH(EEER) E+-2@AHHE B
BREFEITZARBRYD  ARERATE %
TRDHBIECN%  BEERERARARNDRE
R EERE R B 2 e BT E) #8i85,000,000
B AZERLEEREESABSIARARRRE
RIEZET BB -

BREATNEEET LA AR A Z BB AR
T HMABEE  ABRARGBRER ST
ERBEE R B R h B A B R +
F2REAH - REMBRERANIVETRE -

TEEDVHARRERTEE  ETHBERBRME
B ARRBROREL BBz WmE R ER
REAHAMAEEER ZFHORMEZRSE °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012

BE—F——F+-A=1—HAUFE

25. SHARE - BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

25.

The following table discloses details of the Company's
share options held by the directors and other employees
and movements in such holdings during the year:

LR 3 32 f¥ 2 X (42)
REXNRXZERESTE (&)

TEBEHEERAMEERE Z AR RBERE
UARZEBRERFAZEEFHE

Outstanding Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding Adjustment  Outstanding
Option Date of Exercise at during during at i respect of at
type grant price 1.1.201 the year the year 31.12.2011  Rights Issue 31.12.2012
RZZ——F RZB-——F RZZ-ZF
-A-H +-A=t+-H BBEE t=A=t-8
BRERR =k T8 E MR ERNTH ERER HARITHR ZRE AR
HKS$ (note (i)
AT (MEEG)
D 29.5.2007 2.640 18,374,360 - (18,374,360) = = =
E 7.7.2009 0.638 (note (i) 30,000,000 (4,948,000) - 25,052,000 4,474,287 29,526,287
(M)
48,374,360 (4,948,000  (18,374,360) 25,052,000 4,474,287 29,526,287
Exercisable at the end of the year
REZA{TR 17,552,000 29,526,287
Weighted average exercise price
MEFHTEE 1.469 0.752 2.640 0.752 0.638 0.638
Note: M 5

(i) The number and exercise price of the outstanding share
options were adjusted as a result of completion of the
Rights Issue on 10th July, 2012.

(i) The vesting period, which is the period from the date of
grant to the exercisable date, of the share options granted is
determined by directors of the Company at each time when
the options are granted. Holders of share options granted
under the Scheme may only exercise their options during
the exercisable periods as follows:

Option type D
DX % IR 1

Option type E

EXR B8 I 4

i) BARE_ZFT-"FEA+HATRHER  HRITE
BhREZHERTEELDSHE -

iy FEHBREZEBHSELAMETERRS
B DAARREERNGRAXHBERESETE -
RIBZT BB 2 BIRER A AR RATAT
EEAR T E R A

Maximum % of share options exercisable
ATEBERERSES L

1.3.2008 - 28.2.2009

1.3.2009 - 28.2.2010

1.3.2010 - 28.2.2011

1.5.2010 - 30.4.2011

1.56.2011 - 30.4.2012

1.56.2012 - 30.4.2013

up to 50%

= A #50%

up to 75%

K= Al E75%

up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)
= AlE100% (VA RITEEABR)

No share option was exercised during both years ended
31st December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$204,000 for
the year ended 31st December, 2012 (2011: HK$929,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.
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26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

26. KEREEE

REERENFAE AR TIIEHBRE

non-cancellable operating lease which fall due as follows:

RBEHR  AEERBETIABEREHEEAR

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FHET FHIT

Within one year —F R 313 444
In the second to fifth years inclusive @HF_FEZFERF (BIEEHEREWE) 100 472
413 916

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by

the Group for certain of its warehouse,

properties and car parks. Lease is negotiated for an

27.

ancillary office

REVENKEAKERERE BIRAWE
sz ENEE BEZFHFHIATR/=
F(ZB——F : MF) » ARANIRE X E#E

average term of three years (2011: two years) with fixed A -
monthly rentals over the term of the lease.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. EXREE
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRI #ERNLERA MK HE
acquisition of plant and equipment R RE LB
contracted for but not provided in IWEEE AR X
the consolidated financial statements 31,117 1,199
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2012
HE—_T——F+_F=+—HIFE

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) for its employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the state-managed
retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to approximately HK$4,482,000
(2011: HK$4,925,000).

The tax audits for the years of assessment 1998/1999
to 2003/2004 were settled during the year ended 31st
December, 2011, details of which are set out in note 10.

The tax audits conducted by the IRD on the Company
and its subsidiaries in respect of the years of assessment
2004/2005 to 2010/2011 are still on-going.
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The IRD had previously issued additional assessments
to GMHF for the years of assessment 2004/2005 and
2005/2006 on 2nd June, 2006 and 19th October, 2006
respectively. The taxes demanded under the additional
assessments amounted to HK$11,220,917 in aggregate.
The Group had lodged objections with the IRD against
these additional assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of objections by GMHF,
tax payment of HK$1,992,965 was made during the
year ended 31st December, 2006. Further, tax reserve
certificates of HK$1,717,279 in respect of the 2005/2006
assessments for GMHF, pending the outcome of the tax
audits and the objections, were purchased in December
2006 and included in “deposits and prepayments” as at
31st December, 2012 and 31st December, 2011. Also,
banker’s undertakings of HK$3,828,453 were arranged by
the Group and had been accepted by the IRD as security
for payment of the mentioned tax. The remaining amounts
of tax of HK$3,682,220 demanded by the IRD have been
held over unconditionally.

In addition, the IRD issued protective assessments to
certain subsidiaries of the Group, namely Chun Yik (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited (“CYMCO"), Man Shung
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“MSMCQ"),
FKHF, for the year of assessment 2005/2006 in March
2012, amounted to HK$525,000 in aggregate. The Group
lodged objections with the IRD against these protective
assessments.

Furthermore, the IRD issued protective assessments
to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group,
namely CYMCO, MSMCO, FKHF and GMHF and for the
year of assessment 2006/2007 in March 2013, amounted
to HK$875,000 in aggregate. The Group lodged objections
with the IRD against these protective assessments.

The directors believe that no additional provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax in respect of the tax audit for the years
of assessment 2004/2005 and onwards is necessary at
the present stage. The directors consider that the inquiries
from the IRD are still at a fact-finding stage and the IRD
has not yet expressed any formal opinion on the potential
tax liability, if any. The potential tax liability, if any, cannot
be readily ascertained at this stage.

HEBRERS %‘Jﬁ’\fjj/\ﬁ/\ﬂ BRk—= ?;ﬁ
ANFE+A+TABRABE ZTEWEFE =
fﬁi&fjjﬂi/fjjﬁﬁﬁmﬁfﬁﬁ
BN - REBEIINIHATEM2HREBEEHA
11,220,978 - AEBERZZEIINT R A
HRRERE -

BE_ZZEF+_A=+—HLFE 28B4
ELx&ﬁié B X f+ % 181,992,965/ T -

YR -_EZERNF+_ARRPEREZ_TTRHEF
//:¥:w\¢ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ72mmjﬂﬁm%

NEBBEZRRERHZER - WEHAFSE
REE—ZT——F+-_A=+—HEZZE—F
+ZA=+—BALEFECFARSRENK]
We BE  AEBELZPRITHIES 828,453 8T
EAIN ERBRZEIF MUK HEEZZK
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BAR (DR AEZCRMEFRAERYE BRA

(fﬁm@?ﬂ) BlECRMBEEERE) B
ﬁ“*ﬁ%msﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁAwﬁz:EEEE
S IEERFRUFERLRELTR 6 1A
525,000 7T - AE BB iz SRE TR [
BRI RY -

o HERRZE—=ZF=ARAQAEREE
BETHBAR (Dl AEZEREM - BIBRM -
BEAEERAPHEE) 2SR /T LHF
A EEEHREMRE - & £ /8875,000/8 T °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

31.

a)

During the year, the Group engaged Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd as the Group's purchase agent in
Australia at an annual fee of HK$1 for the agency
services rendered to the Group. The total value
of goods purchased under this arrangement from
the suppliers amounted to HK$82,369,000 (2011:
HK$20,116,000). Hop Fung (Australia) Pty Ltd is a
company in which Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, an executive
director of the Company, has controlling interest.

The remuneration of directors, who are key
management of the Group, during the year are
disclosed in note 12. The remuneration of executive
directors, who are also the key executives of the
Group, is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

30 HEALXR S

a) FRN - NEBEMAHop Fung (Australia) Pty
LtdA RSB RN 2 HKERIEA - Wt E
MASERECRERBE I HEBIET
BRUEEZHERNEEIRECERBER
82,369,000/ 7t (== — —4 : 20,116,000
HIT) o AR BAITE ST ARE L £ R Hop
Fung (Australia) Pty LtdfE & 5 6 #5 -

b) FRAEEIZEBABZEEFNFAZ
MERME12HE - AITESTIRAKHE
IBRETRAR REZMEHFMEE
ERFEARARTEBELETE -

3. ARAMBARRARBE

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FET FET

Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 581,536 557,593
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ D NGI S 1,524,005 1,435,653
Deposits and prepayments e RIBEMK 492 286
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 6,175 1,827
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARG B (1,475,813) (1,443,925)
Other payables and accrued charges Hfh A B R A S (5,205) (6,098)
Taxation payable 1A - (412)
631,190 544,924

Share capital [N 72,439 48,292
Share premium &1 4% B 443,294 425,382
Share options reserve AR 17,088 16,884
Retained profits (note) REFE (M) 98,369 54,366
631,190 544,924

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT
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31.

32.

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

Details of the movement in the Company’'s retained profits are
set out below:

31. KRB MBERRERBE2)

BeE

ARRRBHMEZ BHHFERIIWT :

HK$' 000

T T

At 1st January, 2011 R=ZF——F—A—H 26,319
Profit and other comprehensive income for the year FAFBEREMEERELRE 28,047
At 31st December, 2011 RZTE——F+-_A=+—8H 54,366
Profit and other comprehensive income for the year FAFNBEREMEERZLRE 44,003
At 31st December, 2012 RZT——F+=-A=+—H 98,369

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, all of which are
wholly-owned by the Company, as at 31st December,

32. FEMB L RIER

RZE——F+_A=+—HBERZ-_TE—F+=
A=+—8 AARET2EHEEZETENBA

AIFBOT

or registration/

2012 and 31st December, 2011 are as follows:
Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid

share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital Principal activities
MR ERITREZRE
iy PN = 3.8 BEARAK FEXEK
Chun Yik (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares MOP100,000 Trading of corrugated packaging
Offshore) Limited
e ORFIBEF R B LM% 100,000,829 REBEEES
BRAF
Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 Provision of management service
Ware Factory Limited
EHEERmRERL R EH L@k100% T REER RS
Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (note)
ERERRLR
3,000,000 7t (Pt &E)
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Investment holding
Ware Factory Limited
Bl 2 A A PR A A B TEk2B T REER
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Name of subsidiary
MEBARRRE
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper

Ware Factory Limited
NPAEEHRLBERA A

Green Forest (QingXin) Paper
Industrial Limited *

RE(EH) HEBRRA*

Hop Fung Consultants Limited

REEREBRAR

Hop Fung Group Company
Limited

Hop Fung International
Enterprise Limited
SERBRCERR AR

Man Shung (Macao
Commercial Offshore)

Limited
BIECRMB R ERE)
BRAF

Top Develop Limited

hERERAA

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations
AR
B

Hong Kong

B

PRC

th

Hong Kong

B

British Virgin
Islands/
Hong Kong

EBRUBE/
B

Hong Kong
e

Macau
R P

British Virgin
Islands

RERAEE

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
contributed capital
ERITRARRE
BEARE

Ordinary shares HK$100

ZEMR100% T

Non-voting deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (note)

ERERRLER
3,000,000 7t (Fff#E)

Contributed capital
US$112,247,803
(equivalent to approximately
HK$764,494,899)

BHMRA112,247,803% 7T
(K185 1A764,494,89975 7T

Ordinary shares HK$2
Ti@R2AB T

Ordinary shares US$600

T BAR600E T

Ordinary shares HK$2
Timk2s T

Ordinary shares MOP100,000

E3EA%100,00008 F9 &

Ordinary shares US$1

TRRIET

Principal activities

FTEEYR

Provision of management service

REEERY

Manufacturing and trading of
containerboard and corrugated
packaging

MIRERRE B R 8E
k&S

Provision of management service
RUEERS

Investment holding

Provision of accounting service
REGH RS

Manufacturing and trading of
corrugated packaging

RFEeEs#ERES
Investment holding and

trading of containerboard
REERREAREE S
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Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Name of subsidiary operations

AR
MEBATEHE B
REERBmARRA PRC

B
AEERCRIDERR PRC

Gale]

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

contributed capital
BROTRBERSE

BEARE

Contributed capital
HK$23,000,000
B % 223,000,000 7T

Contributed capital
HK$25,000,000
B # % 725,000,000/ 7T

Principal activities

FTEEYR

Manufacturing and trading
of corrugated packaging
AR HERES

Manufacturing and trading
of corrugated packaging
RFEeEs8#ERES

Note: The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by
the Group, practically carry no right to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any annual general
meeting of the companies. On winding up, the holders of
the deferred shares are entitled to the distribution after
the distribution of HK$100,000,000 million to holders of
ordinary shares, as specified in the articles of association.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31st December, 2012 and 31st December,
2011 or at any time during the year.

< Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, 35z 4%
mARAT and & LM ORI BRAQF are wholly foreign
owned enterprise.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

MsE H&K%LLH&‘]\EFEEZK%%E_ CBEREY
EHHERRE - WREBEARERNRRBEAN
emA - ijIECQLTQ%ZﬁE%‘J o RIEHRES -
REARABERAAUEE  BEEROFTEARN
A [m & B AR A A 9 K100,000,000,000,0007#
TLRB2EDIK -

BHop Fung Group Company Limited4h » E b7

EHBARISHAARREERE -

RZB-——F+-_A=+—BRZZB——F+=
A=+ A FAREAER ZWERRGEE
BRE e

L OREEHAREERAR  RREZERERA
AREEERR RIDERRADREENERE -

L%ﬂﬁ$ﬂﬂ%$wﬁﬁ$$.%\&éFﬁ
EXEAKENBERR -EERA SHAM
WE AEMIIHEERREEN IR
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RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Changes in fair value of
unsecured structured
borrowing

Changes in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year, attributable
to owners of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity attributable
to owners of the Company

HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHT

£

Yo g
iH & AR

EF

H Al A

HE KD HKAR
THFX

H Al F X

FITE A
BEREREE
DN E 2 &

TESRMIA
NP Ez#

i 1 )7

FEHHAX

ZAUNETEZ 2SN
16 F R FIE

SRR

2008
HK$'000
TET

1,033,152
(846,482)

186,670
20,734
(46,843)
(62,198)
(11,304)
(11,869)

(7,157)

(20,331)

47,702

(6,270)

41,432

2008
HK$' 000
TET

1,581,391
809,314

772,077

Year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2009
HK$’ 000
TAET

923,366
(746,425)

176,941
14,690
(36,234)
(61,902)
(20,389)
(10,601)

9,464

23,452

95,421
(11,656)

83,765

2009
HK$' 000
TAET

1,737,719
883,304

854,415

2010
HK$' 000
TET

1,428,886
(1,167,934)

260,952
19,317
(80,963)
(82,325)
(15,746)
(21,126)

297

2,829

83,235
(11,525)

71,710

2011
HK$'000
TAET

1,440,233
(1,224,150)

216,083
24,875
(68,624)
(71,108)
(34,181)
(24,370)

(5,815)

36,860
(10,067)

26,793

At 31st December,

R+=—A=+—H

2010
HK$' 000
TET

1,978,055
1,030,089

947,966

2011
HK$'000
TAET

2,066,021
1,046,216

1,019,805

2012
HK$'000
FHT

1,051,097
(880,542)

170,555
11,556
(55,714)
(68,878)
(23,717)
(25,412)

18,444

26,834
(6,245)

20,589

2012
HK$'000
FHT

2,044,395
929,988

1,114,407
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